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          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Good afternoon, and

          3  welcome to this hearing of the Consumer Affairs

          4  Committee. I am Philip Reed, the Chair of this

          5  Committee. I am joined at this moment by my

          6  colleagues who also serve on this Committee. To my

          7  far left is Maria Del Carmen Arroyo from the Bronx,

          8  and John Liu from Queens.

          9                 I know that there are, this may be

         10  the most unprecedented day in the Council, I think

         11  there are seven hearings today of the Council, one

         12  next door, some across the street, I've attended

         13  three this morning. So my colleagues are all trying

         14  to be in the various places that we've been asked,

         15  so I think you may see some people coming back and

         16  forth, and I apologize, it's not that people don't

         17  want to be here. Two members of this Committee,

         18  Council Member Joseph Addabbo and Council Member

         19  Charles Barron, are co-chairing a committee hearing

         20  next door in Higher Ed, and I know they want to also

         21  join us, but they will certainly be made aware of

         22  the conversation that we're having here today. And

         23  I'm also joined on my right by Thomas Ferrugia,

         24  Counsel to this Committee, and I want to thank him

         25  as well for his work, as well as Sandy Dillon, who
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          2  has worked on this.

          3                 This afternoon we are going to

          4  continue our view of the complex problems facing

          5  vendors operating on the streets of New York City.

          6  We have held several hearings on this issue where we

          7  heard from the Department of Consumer Affairs, the

          8  Criminal Justice Coordinator's Office, variety of

          9  vendor and vendor advocacy groups, crafts people,

         10  business organizations, and community groups.

         11                 At those prior hearings the Committee

         12  listened to suggestions to improve the climate for

         13  vendors and other citizens and addressed the

         14  enforcement policies of local regulatory and law

         15  enforcement agencies.

         16                 Today the Committee will hear

         17  testimony on Intro. 621, a comprehensive proposal to

         18  replace subchapter 27 of Title 20 of the

         19  Administrative Code with new language that considers

         20  the expansive universe of vendors who operate in the

         21  City of New York.

         22                 The bill also seeks to significantly

         23  revise subchapter two of Title 17 of the

         24  Administrative Code that relates to food vendors

         25  with the intention of providing increased uniformity
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          2  on restrictions enforcement penalties relating to

          3  all street merchants.

          4                 Efforts to develop and promulgate a

          5  uniformed framework for street vendors is not a

          6  novel idea, but has consistently met with

          7  substantial controversy. This has largely been due

          8  to the overwhelming number of laws and judicial

          9  decisions governing merchants, all of whom are

         10  subject to different legal parameters.

         11                 Disabled veterans, non-disabled

         12  veterans, artists, crafts people and book sellers

         13  all have a different legal status. There are several

         14  distinct locations and distance restrictions for

         15  disabled veterans, food vendors and general vendors.

         16                 Further complicating matters are the

         17  multiple agencies that must enforce this patchwork

         18  of local state and court opinions.

         19                 Intro. 621 seeks to develop a

         20  framework which recognizes and incorporates the

         21  various legal issues into one inclusive piece of

         22  legislation.

         23                 Intro. 621 would open up nearly all

         24  City streets and avenues to vending, but limit the

         25  number of vendors to three per block face.
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          2                 Intro. 621 would also eliminate the

          3  street vendor review panel, an inactive body

          4  presently authorized to close additional streets.

          5                 To enable simple application of the

          6  law, DCA and DOH would issue new licenses, each

          7  displaying a priority number based upon the

          8  licensee's seniority.

          9                 Disabled veterans would be a special

         10  class of general vendor licensee, holding a

         11  preferred priority when a particular location is in

         12  contention.

         13                 The proposal also calls for an

         14  increase in the number of general vending licenses

         15  from 853, which is presently the number, to 2,000

         16  over a two-year period of time.

         17                 General food vendors would be

         18  fingerprinted to thwart counterfeit -- general and

         19  food vendors would be fingerprinted to thwart

         20  counterfeit licenses.

         21                 The proposal also amends the forum

         22  where general vendor violations would be

         23  adjudicated, relocating these hearings to the

         24  offices of DCA.

         25                 DCA would also be the forum for
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          2  hearing violations assessed against the First

          3  Amendment vendors.

          4                 Merchants that are classified as

          5  First Amendment vendors under Intro. 621 would be

          6  issued an independent license, denoting their unique

          7  status.

          8                 The proposal would require applicants

          9  to provide DCA with their contact information,

         10  recent photograph and description of the goods and

         11  services being offered, their tax ID number and tax

         12  clearance certificate, all of these things which are

         13  now asked of vendors.

         14                 However, 621 will not require First

         15  Amendment vendors to be fingerprinted.

         16                 DCA would not charge any fees for the

         17  purchase or renewal or replacement of a First

         18  Amendment license, and there would be no limit on

         19  the number of licenses authorized.

         20                 To ensure fairness, priority would be

         21  determined by the date of the applicant's State tax

         22  identification number. The proposal would limit the

         23  number of food vendor licenses to the amount that

         24  exists on the date the legislation would take

         25  effect, but maintain the present number of cart
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          2  permits.

          3                 However, recognizing that additional

          4  locations would be available for vending, and to

          5  maintain consistency throughout the City, the

          6  proposal would increase the number of

          7  borough-specific licenses from 50 to 100 for each of

          8  the other boroughs.

          9                 The proposal would require DOH to

         10  distribute food vendor licenses in a manner similar

         11  to the method employed by DCA with issuing general

         12  vendor licenses, such as that the licenses would

         13  note a priority number and be in a form designed to

         14  prevent duplication. Those who apply would also be

         15  subject to fingerprinting.

         16                 Intro. 621 would draw a correlation

         17  between the pushcart permit and food vending

         18  license, as the individual who holds the pushcart

         19  permit would be unable to renew it unless all

         20  violations assessed against any food vendor

         21  utilizing that pushcart was satisfied.

         22                 Penalties assessed against food

         23  vendors would continue to be heard by DOH.

         24                 To control pedestrian traffic,

         25  maintain a level of organization and facilitate
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          2  consistent enforcement, all vendors would be subject

          3  to identical time, place and manner restrictions.

          4                 Additionally, all vendors would be

          5  subject to similar fines. To address complaints of

          6  unbalanced penalty methods, the proposal sets a new

          7  fine scheme for all licensees, requiring multiple

          8  violations of the same offense within a one-year

          9  period for increased penalties to apply.

         10                 Additionally, the penalties would be

         11  mandated and not subject to the discretion of the

         12  enforcement agency.

         13                 Finally, police officers who close

         14  off a street for exigent circumstances will be

         15  required to note in writing the basis for the

         16  closure.

         17                 Additionally, should goods be

         18  forfeited by any vendor, the police or regulatory

         19  agency that sees the merchandise or food will be

         20  required to notify the affected party in writing of

         21  location of the goods.

         22                 I have just offered a broad outline

         23  to a complicated proposal. The Committee looks

         24  forward to hearing from the witnesses and listening

         25  to reactions to the bill so that we can more fully
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          2  address the detail.

          3                 My hope is that all the stakeholders

          4  will work with the Council to formulate the most

          5  constructive and cohesive piece of legislation

          6  possible.

          7                 Once again, the Committee has invited

          8  the Administration, the City agencies, business

          9  organizations, advocacy groups and other interested

         10  parties to provide testimony on these issues.

         11                 There was some oversight in creating

         12  this statement today.

         13                 Council Member Barron has introduced

         14  Intro. 491, a local law to amend the Administrative

         15  Code of the City of New York in relation to the

         16  licenses application requirements for general and

         17  food street vendors.

         18                 In essence, Council Member Barron's

         19  bill would remove the requirement for people to show

         20  working papers in order to get a license.

         21                 This is a portion of the bill right

         22  now, of law right now, vending laws in the City,

         23  licenses, are the only licenses that require people

         24  to show citizenship or working papers, and we are in

         25  agreement with the Administration and the Council
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          2  that that is discriminatory, and so, Council Member

          3  Barron's bill has been accepted in general

          4  principle, but will also be folded into the larger

          5  bill, 621-A, and I want to thank him for his

          6  participation in the dialogue. So, if people want to

          7  discuss that part of it, they can. Unfortunately, it

          8  was not stated as what we were going to be

          9  discussing, but it is in part and parcel affecting

         10  vending.

         11                 There clearly has been a lot of

         12  discussion over the last couple of days. I, myself,

         13  have been involved in at least three or four

         14  meetings with advocacy groups, business

         15  organizations, about their concern for this large

         16  revision of the legislation.

         17                 I will say to you that I took this on

         18  because ever since I have been the Chair of Consumer

         19  Affairs, which is from January 1st of 2002, the

         20  number one issue that has come forward towards this

         21  Committee has been vending legislation.

         22                 We have heard from virtually every

         23  stakeholder, whether it is the vendors, the disabled

         24  veterans, the artists, the First Amendment, Business

         25  Improvement Districts, the small merchants, the

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  community boards, the police, nobody is satisfied,

          3  nobody thinks what is on the books now is fair.

          4                 Nobody has come to me and said this

          5  is a perfect system and we should leave it that way.

          6                 People have said, you have got to do

          7  something about this. That is what we have tried to

          8  do in having the hearings and the informal meetings

          9  with people, to draw all people's concerns together

         10  and to try to come up with what is fair,

         11  comprehensible, understandable and enforceable. And

         12  it's really, I think the simplicity of this bill, it

         13  has people confused.

         14                 So, we are going to be listening to

         15  testimony today. We have a second hearing already

         16  scheduled for May 4th at 1:00 p.m. I know there is a

         17  considerable amount of concern about this.

         18                 We are going to try to take in as

         19  much testimony as we can today. I'm going to ask

         20  people to be succinct. I am going to stop you, if I

         21  feel that we have to move forward to hear as many

         22  people as today, but we are going to be making this

         23  legislation something that is productive and that

         24  everybody has a part of.

         25                 Having said that, we've also been
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          2  joined by Council Member Gentile from Brooklyn.

          3  Thank you. Who is also a member of this Committee.

          4                 Is there someone here from the

          5  Administration?

          6                 MR. FULLINGTON: Good afternoon, Mr.

          7  Chairman, members of the Committee.

          8                 As we had told your staff, we --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Could you identify

         10  yourself for the record, please.

         11                 MR. FULLINGTON: I apologize, sir.

         12                 Kevin Fullington, Deputy Director and

         13  General Counsel, Mayor's Office of City Legislative

         14  Affairs.

         15                 We have received a copy of the intro

         16  and distributed it to all the affected agencies.

         17                 They are currently reviewing this

         18  bill. Unfortunately, at this time we have been

         19  unable to develop a coordinated and comprehensive

         20  response.

         21                 The agencies are working as quickly

         22  as they can to develop our position and we'd be

         23  happy to work with you in the future and we should

         24  have a response some time in the next few weeks.

         25                 We'd love to meet with you and
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          2  testify at future hearings, but at this stage, we

          3  are not prepared to offer our comprehensive

          4  response.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Let the record

          6  show, please, that the Chair has been in

          7  communication with the Administration about this

          8  bill for several months in its formulative stages.

          9  And Mr. Fullington has participated in meetings, the

         10  Commissioner of Consumer Affairs, the Coordinator of

         11  Criminal Justice. There is nothing in this

         12  legislation that is any surprise to the

         13  Administration. Quite the contrary. The

         14  Administration has in a sense essentially helped us

         15  develop and create this legislation.

         16                 So, I find it, I guess in this

         17  political season that we're in, even though the

         18  Mayor says he doesn't do anything political, not

         19  surprising that the Administration doesn't want to

         20  take a position. But we are having a second hearing

         21  on May 4th, and I thoroughly intend to hear from the

         22  Administration on this bill on May 4th, or we'll

         23  have to use the powers that the Council has to

         24  summon the people to have those questions answered.

         25                 So, I don't want to go there today,
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          2  Mr. Fullington, but I just really find it difficult

          3  to understand that we also had legislation related

          4  to Cyber Cafes, Internet cafes, and identity theft,

          5  that we are, in essence, in agreement with the

          6  Administration on.

          7                 And we had asked the Administration

          8  to prepare for us to be able to vote those bills out

          9  of the Committee today. And I was informed this

         10  morning that the Administration wasn't even prepared

         11  to do that.

         12                 So, I have the greatest respect for

         13  you and that office, but I don't understand the

         14  tenuity to address issues that the City seems to

         15  think that we as leaders are supposed to be

         16  addressing. Identity theft is the biggest criminal

         17  issue going on in the City of New York, by

         18  everybody's testimony. The District Attorney of

         19  Manhattan is supporting the legislation.

         20                 So, I am not sure what the difficulty

         21  is. We agreed on the issues of cyberspace just last

         22  week. So, I don't understand what the difficulty is.

         23  And today you're not prepared to talk about

         24  something that we have been talking about for the

         25  last two years.
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          2                 So, you want to comment, that's fine.

          3  I'm just suggesting that we will be looking to hear

          4  from you on May 4th. There shouldn't be any excuse.

          5                 MR. FULLINGTON: First of all, on the

          6  issue of the Cyber Cafes and identify theft, we have

          7  been in contact with your counsel numerous times

          8  over the past few weeks, and while we do agree with

          9  both of those sets of bills, there are a number of

         10  technical issues that remain to be worked out and we

         11  have communicated that to your staff repeatedly over

         12  the last couple of weeks. And we do support both of

         13  those and there are just some small technical issues

         14  that need to be worked out.

         15                 We certainly will be ready by May 4th

         16  to testify, and while we have met with you and your

         17  staff over the last couple of months on the issue of

         18  vending, there are numerous other agencies that

         19  weren't present at that table, and they received

         20  copies of this bill six days ago.

         21                 So, while it is true that we have had

         22  some discussions with you on this, it is not an

         23  accurate statement to say that the Administration as

         24  a whole has been completely involved in this

         25  process, and we just need some time to bring all the
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          2  agencies in so we can have a thorough and thoughtful

          3  response to this bill, which we certainly will be

          4  able to do by May.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, we'll

          6  certainly be looking forward to hearing from you on

          7  May 4th. And I guess the good news is that we have

          8  more time to hear from the people of New York. Thank

          9  you very much.

         10                 MR. FULLINGTON: Thank you, Mr.

         11  Chairman.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We're going to try

         13  to balance the number of people that come and

         14  testify, so we're trying to hear from different

         15  groups, and trying to do this as best as I can and

         16  as fairly as we can.

         17                 So, we'd like to call forward people

         18  that I think are here representing the Business

         19  Improvement Districts, and that would be Tom Cusick.

         20  Is he here? Ike Shauli, please all come forward.

         21  Harold Grabino. Mr. Grabino? Mr. Grabino?

         22                 Ross Branca. Mr. Branca.

         23                 Michael Weiss. Mr. Weiss.

         24                 And John Logue.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Can I make a
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          2  statement?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes, you can,

          4  Council Member Liu.

          5                 And then we want to hear from the

          6  group of veteran vendors. I can't seem to get those

          7  two v's out well.

          8                 There's many groups representing

          9  disabled veterans, so we're going to be hearing from

         10  veterans and disabled veterans, and then the general

         11  vendors.

         12                 Councilman, while you guys are

         13  preparing yourselves, could we get enough chairs so

         14  they could all? Is it possible to do that? Council

         15  Member Liu had a comment that he wanted to make. And

         16  I think we've been joined by Oliver Koppell, another

         17  member of this Committee.

         18                 Thank you, Council Member Koppell,

         19  from the Bronx.

         20                 Council Member Liu.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you,

         22  Chairman Reed, for holding this hearing, for the

         23  courage and the strength that you have shown in two

         24  years of work and effort on putting together this

         25  comprehensive package. I completely agree with you.
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          2  And I imagine that everybody in this room would

          3  agree that the current set of laws and regulations

          4  on the books at different levels of government

          5  simply are inadequate and outdated, and so something

          6  must be done to bring all of these different kinds

          7  of rules together so that vendors, small businesses,

          8  the residents of this City, will have an easier time

          9  understanding what is allowed, and what is not. And

         10  in that way we can give everybody an equal

         11  opportunity.

         12                 Mr. Chairman, I expect that we have a

         13  very full room today. I think at sometimes emotions

         14  may reign high, and I think that with such a

         15  comprehensive sweeping set of changes that you and

         16  our Committee have put together, that there's

         17  probably going to be something that someone is not

         18  all that happy with. We hope that we'll hear from

         19  all of those people who are not happy, but at the

         20  same time, if people do have something constructive

         21  to add to the discussion on this comprehensive

         22  sweeping change, that would certainly be most

         23  welcome as well. I look forward to hearing all the

         24  testimony this afternoon.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very
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          2  much, Council Member.

          3                 And let me please say to all those

          4  that are testifying, if there are elements of this

          5  bill that you're dissatisfied with, of course we

          6  want to hear about that. But we're not going to let

          7  you off the hook, because what we need to do is hear

          8  from you what you think needs to be done to make

          9  improvements to it.

         10                 So, if you've just come to say it's

         11  not going to work, you should probably rethink your

         12  testimony, and let us know. Because I think we've

         13  met with everybody here, and in fairness, I think

         14  it's an opportunity for the other stakeholders to

         15  hear the concerns that one group may have as opposed

         16  to another. So, we're going to use this opportunity

         17  to have that happen.

         18                 Having said that, gentlemen, you've

         19  figured out who wants to speak first?

         20                 MR. WEISS: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Please identify

         22  yourself for the record.

         23                 MR. WEISS: Chairman, Reed and

         24  distinguished members of the City Council Consumer

         25  Affairs Committee, my name is Mike Weiss. I'm the
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          2  Executive Director of the MetroTech Business

          3  Improvement District and the Fulton Mall

          4  Association, located in Downtown Brooklyn. And

          5  together these organizations comprise over 350 small

          6  retail establishments located in that area.

          7                 As past president of the BID Managers

          8  Association and Chair of the Vendor Committee, I

          9  have been asked by Fred Cerullo, our current

         10  President, who is out of town, to represent the 50

         11  BIDs now operating in the City.

         12                 It is estimated that over 60,000

         13  businesses are represented by these Business

         14  Improvement Districts.

         15                 At the outset, I should state that

         16  the BIDs are not at all anti-vendor. We have along

         17  history of working with representatives of the

         18  various vendor communities as well as the City

         19  Council and the City Administration to formulate a

         20  rational and enforceable system regulating street

         21  vendor activity.

         22                 This goes back to 1988 when we

         23  presented legislation at that time known as Intro.

         24  110, that we felt went a very long way toward

         25  addressing the many complicated issues in this
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          2  arena, and would serve the vast majority of existing

          3  vendors and merchants well.

          4                 Intro. 621 is almost totally ignoring

          5  that history. It sets up a situation that's

          6  unworkable, and thus it's unenforceable. It opens up

          7  every street in the City, including residential

          8  blocks, to every level of vending that is

          9  unprecedented. You might conceivably have up to 24

         10  vendors within 20 feet of an intersection, creating

         11  issues of pedestrian safety and fierce competition

         12  with existing merchants and existing vendors.

         13                 It is an attack on the thousands of

         14  small mom and pop merchants, like those in Sunset

         15  Park, on Fordham Road, on Myrtle Avenue in

         16  Ridgewood, and on 86th Street in Bayridge who pay

         17  rent, taxes and struggle to make ends meet.

         18                 How would you explain to Tzushad

         19  Anwar, who operates Fulton Hotdog King, located at

         20  472 Fulton Street on the corner of Elm Place, whose

         21  main business is hotdogs and knishes, and by the

         22  way, good ones, that he might immediately have four

         23  hotdog vendors on blockfaces immediately adjacent to

         24  his location? And if this bill becomes law, a story

         25  like this will be repeated thousands of times in
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          2  every community in the City.

          3                 I'm not going to get into every point

          4  of the poorly drawn provisions of this bill, because

          5  I must say, unfortunately it is so far off the mark

          6  that we'd be wasting time trying to correct them.

          7                 It is hard to believe that the

          8  members of the Council, all of whom represent

          9  communities that would be negatively affected by

         10  this bill, would support it after a thorough review.

         11                 To be even more blunt, this bill

         12  should be DOA, and we need to start over, working

         13  together, and working together with the vendors to

         14  formulate legislation that will allow for the needs

         15  of the vendor community, permit small business

         16  owners to compete and be enforceable. We stand ready

         17  to provide that assistance. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes, thank you.

         19                 The Council has a policy that we

         20  don't basically tolerate outbursts and applause or

         21  boos. That's not just for this Committee, it's for

         22  all committees, so that it respects people.

         23                 So, if you want to engage in that,

         24  you run the risk of being asked to leave. And I

         25  would appreciate that if you'd recognize that in
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          2  advance of being asked to leave.

          3                 MR. BRANCA: Council Member Reed,

          4  members of the City Council, my name is Ross Branca.

          5  I represent the Sunset Park BID. We're in Brooklyn.

          6  We have over 400 legitimate small businesses that we

          7  represent.

          8                 Because of the reasons expressed by

          9  Mike Weiss of the Metrotech BID, and because of what

         10  we see in our own BID area, our concern is that

         11  while historically we've had horses and wagons in

         12  the years passed, today we no longer need those

         13  items. We no longer need what they bring to our

         14  City.

         15                 The same can be said for the street

         16  vendor. In our community, vendors create a safety

         17  hazard by blocking our sidewalks, preventing

         18  pedestrians from passing. Entire stretches of

         19  sidewalks in Sunset Park become almost impossible to

         20  navigate.

         21                 Vendors generate garbage and trash

         22  for which legitimate merchants receive sanitation

         23  tickets. Street vendors sell counterfeit knockoffs

         24  of designer goods and parroted CDs and DVDs. Street

         25  vendors sell shoddy goods, or seconds or thirds.
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          2                 Street vendors do not provide a means

          3  for the consumer for the return or the exchange of

          4  goods. Vendors create the illusion that the consumer

          5  is getting products for less, but all the consumer

          6  is getting are products that are illegal, shoddy or

          7  seconds, that cannot be exchanged or returned.

          8                 Street vendors provide the means for

          9  illegal products to be sold to unsuspecting

         10  consumers. Street vendors do not collect taxes or

         11  pay taxes on the items they sell. And I refer you to

         12  anyone --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, I told you,

         14  there's going to be an empty chamber. Thank you.

         15  Everybody is going to get a chance to testify.

         16                 Mr. Bauman, I would appreciate it if

         17  you would take your seat. I would appreciate it if

         18  you would take your seat. Thank you.

         19                 MR. BRANCA: Ask anyone who has bought

         20  anything from a street vendor, they've never paid

         21  taxes or charged tax.

         22                 Food vendors create a substantial

         23  health hazard to the people in our Sunset Park

         24  community. Legitimate merchants are placed at a

         25  disadvantage, since vendors can charge less taxes,
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          2  nor pay rent, or pay for any insurance, such as

          3  disability, unemployment insurance, they pay for

          4  Social Security, or any of the other expenses that

          5  legitimate merchants pay.

          6                 Prove it. It's very simple. Just go

          7  into every legitimate business and look at their

          8  books. They'll show you what they pay.

          9                 Vendors do not provide for liability

         10  insurance. When someone trips over the vendor stand

         11  of debris and gets hurt, it's the City of New York

         12  and the legitimate storeowner or landlord that gets

         13  sued.

         14                 In our community of Sunset Park,

         15  consumers have a limited amount of disposable

         16  income. Street vendors deprive the legitimate

         17  merchant of sales and cause store owners to close.

         18                 As an example, we do not have a fruit

         19  and vegetable store in Sunset Park. Every time one

         20  opens, street vendors drive that store owner out of

         21  business.

         22                 Community Board 7 has repeatedly

         23  voted against allowing street vendors on our

         24  commercial strip. The people in Sunset Park do not

         25  want vendors. Street vendors serve no purpose in our
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          2  City. They do not contribute to the welfare of our

          3  society. Vendors only take from our City.

          4                 Street vendors only create problems

          5  for New York City. The City cannot cope with the

          6  myriad of problems created by vendors presently.

          7  This proposed local law will only place additional

          8  burdens on our City agencies to administer and

          9  please street vendors.

         10                 City citizens will have to pay for

         11  these services that will be given to the street

         12  vendors.

         13                 This proposed local law does not

         14  calculate the cost to police and administer it. Nor

         15  does it require street vendors to pay in fees

         16  sufficient money to cover the cost of this proposed

         17  law.

         18                 Quality of life in New York --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Branca, could

         20  you wrap up, please?

         21                 MR. BRANCA: In another minute. Thank

         22  you.

         23                 Quality of life in New York suffers

         24  because of the problems created by street vendors.

         25  This proposed law serves no purpose except to
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          2  increase the number of street vendors at an

          3  unacceptable cost to the City and its people.

          4                 Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Branca, you are

          6  with the Sunset Park Business Improvement District,

          7  right?

          8                 MR. BRANCA: That's correct, sir.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And is the Sunset

         10  Park Business Improvement District a part of the New

         11  York City BID Managers Association?

         12                 MR. BRANCA: Yes, sir, we are.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Weiss just

         14  testified that he was speaking on behalf of the BID

         15  Managers Association and said that "at the outset, I

         16  should state that the BIDs are not anti-vendor. We

         17  have a long history of working with representatives

         18  of various communities."

         19                 Now, is your testimony in conflict

         20  with what Mr. Weiss said?

         21                 MR. BRANCA: Slightly.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         23                 MR. BRANCA: But only in conflict with

         24  the illegal vendors.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, that brush
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          2  was awfully broad. I just want to make sure because

          3  --

          4                 MR. BRANCA: Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Weiss said he

          6  spoke to everybody.

          7                 MR. BRANCA: Well, let's use a

          8  narrower brush, Councilman Reed. It's simple, what

          9  we're saying in effect is, if you're a legal vendor,

         10  fine. We'll tolerate you. Illegal vendors, no. We

         11  don't want any part of you. Neither do we want any

         12  expanding of the legal vendors.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. Thank you

         14  very much.

         15                 MR. BRANCA: You're welcome, sir.

         16                 Mr. Cusick.

         17                 MR. CUSICK: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         18  My name is Tom Cusick. I'm President of the Fifth

         19  Avenue Business Improvement District. And since I

         20  distributed testimony, I'm not going to go over all

         21  of it. I'll make a couple of quick points.

         22                 First, I want to associate myself

         23  with Mr. Weiss's comments. And Mr. Chairman, in

         24  response to your comment, I'd like to reinforce that

         25  we, on Fifth Avenue, and as a former President of
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          2  the BID Managers Association --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Cusick, could

          4  you pull the microphone a little closer? It's hard

          5  to hear you.

          6                 MR. CUSICK: I want to say that as a

          7  former President of the BID Managers Association and

          8  particularly with regard to Fifth Avenue and how we

          9  address vendor issues that we regularly meet with

         10  and discuss, sometimes opposing views, sometimes

         11  supporting views, with vendors in our district.

         12                 So, in direct response to your

         13  question, in opening this, I'd also like to say

         14  that, yes, there are things that we could address

         15  together to help move this issue forward.

         16                 In that regard, I want to express my

         17  deep disappointment that this bill virtually

         18  eliminates all of the progress that was made in

         19  Albany, where vendors, retail tenants, property

         20  owners on opposite sides, worked for many years to

         21  come to an agreement. I think the opposite sides

         22  were not entirely satisfied with any, with all of

         23  the elements of that legislation in Albany, but when

         24  it was all over, a reasonably fair bill was adopted.

         25  This wipes all that work away.
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          2                 And the last thing I'd like to say is

          3  that, Intro. 621, virtually, with minor footnote,

          4  ignores safety issues.

          5                 In my prepared remarks, I submitted

          6  copies of photos that I gave to the vendor review

          7  panel in 1999, when we asked that Fifth Avenue be

          8  excluded we documented the levels of congestion and

          9  issues of safety, and you will see in some of those

         10  photos, pedestrians walking out into the roadbed.

         11  You will see pedestrians walking out into the

         12  roadbed around the vendors that at that time were on

         13  Fifth Avenue.

         14                 In other cities, the major streets

         15  that often are fond of referring to themselves as

         16  the Fifth Avenue of Chicago or the Fifth Avenue of

         17  Los Angeles, prohibit vendors on their

         18  thoroughfares.

         19                 We do have now, and there always has

         20  been, reasonable support for side street vending,

         21  but keeping those thoroughfares open.

         22                 So, I do think, Mr. Chairman, that

         23  there are things that vendors and property owners

         24  and retailers have worked together on, and from my

         25  point of view this goes backwards and undermines all
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          2  of that progress.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

          4                 Next.

          5                 MR. SHAULI: My name is Ike Shauli.

          6  I'm a small business owner in Sunset Park. I've been

          7  there over 25 years. I've worked hard, worked as an

          8  employee in the beginning and eventually became a

          9  manager and slowly bought the business. I own the

         10  property as well.

         11                 It's been a tough, tough go but I've

         12  done it.

         13                 When a vendor comes in front of my

         14  store, there is absolutely no space for any

         15  pedestrians to pass. On a Saturday or a Sunday, the

         16  streets are packed with pedestrians, and it is very,

         17  very dangerous to have a vendor opening up his

         18  blanket and selling his merchandise in front of my

         19  store.

         20                 I've seen people trip over

         21  merchandise. I've seen people buy and come back with

         22  the item that's damaged and no one was there the

         23  next day asking me what happened to the vendor.

         24  There are numerous stories such as that. And if

         25  somebody does trip and does decide to sue, I am
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          2  liable for it, and I don't want to be in that

          3  position at all.

          4                 As far as health issues, there are

          5  constantly vendors selling out of shopping carts,

          6  whether it's fruits, vegetables, cakes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm changing my own

          8  rules here.

          9                 MR. SHAULI: Sure.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Now, I've asked you

         11  to testify about this bill here. Now, you're telling

         12  the history of the problems, what kind of business

         13  do you have?

         14                 MR. SHAULI: Sunset Park.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What kind of

         16  business are you in?

         17                 MR. SHAULI: Party goods. Cards, party

         18  goods.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And the vendor that

         20  you're talking about now, are they legal vendors?

         21                 MR. SHAULI: Illegal. Some are legal

         22  but mostly illegal.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But it's legal to

         24  vend in front of your store now?

         25                 MR. SHAULI: Right now, yes. Certain
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          2  days.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: How many vendors

          4  are there any given day in front of your store?

          5                 MR. SHAULI: Uh --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: On that block.

          7                 MR. SHAULI: It depends if I try to

          8  make them go away or not.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Are there more than

         10  three?

         11                 MR. SHAULI: No.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: There's never more

         13  than three?

         14                 MR. SHAULI: No. Well, I only have a

         15  20 foot front.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: No, I'm sorry. I

         17  meant on the block.

         18                 MR. SHAULI: Yes, there could be a lot

         19  more than three.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: There could be a

         21  lot more than three?

         22                 MR. SHAULI: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're aware that

         24  in this proposed legislation it would restrict the

         25  number of vendors to three per block face?
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          2                 MR. SHAULI: Yes, I do. I understand

          3  that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That would change

          5  the situation as it is right now on your block where

          6  there is legal vending, right?

          7                 MR. SHAULI: Yes, it would.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, if you have

          9  more than three on that block now, and this bill

         10  would limit to one street one food vendor, one First

         11  Amendment and one general vendor, on the whole

         12  block.

         13                 MR. SHAULI: Okay.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What do you think

         15  about that?

         16                 MR. SHAULI: First of all, sanitation

         17  problem. I get summonses.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: No, no. I

         19  understand that.

         20                 MR. SHAULI: Vendors in general being

         21  in front of my particular store, as far as summonses

         22  for sanitation, that would be my liability.

         23                 As far as a pedestrian walking when

         24  the sidewalk is only 20 feet, I didn't measure it

         25  but it's quite small, and a tremendous amount of
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          2  traffic in front of the store, and people tripping

          3  on it, I would be liable for that. And I don't want

          4  to be put in that position.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We don't want you

          6  to be liable. Trust me, I don't want you to be

          7  liable. None of my colleagues do. You shouldn't be

          8  liable for things. This is a new system that I think

          9  needs to be addressed with the Department of

         10  Sanitation. I think we all agree that small

         11  businesses are being beat over the head with these

         12  summonses unnecessarily. I think we in fact put

         13  legislation in for how many times they could come up

         14  and down the street and give out violations. But

         15  what I'm asking you, sir, is, you're telling me

         16  right now that the street that you're on has more

         17  than three vendors, so if I said to you that I'm

         18  going to limit the number of vendors to three that

         19  could be on the block, would that not be an

         20  improvement?

         21                 MR. SHAULI: Would that --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Would that be an

         23  improvement if there were only three as opposed to

         24  --

         25                 MR. SHAULI: At times there are only
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          2  three --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

          4                 MR. SHAULI: If they were in front of

          5  my business --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Fine. But you would

          7  agree that right now you've got chaos on your

          8  street?

          9                 MR. SHAULI: On a few blocks, yes.

         10                 On the main thoroughfare --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So are there any

         12  more specific points to this legislation?

         13                 I know you've got concerns about

         14  Department of Sanitation, I'm not trying to cut you

         15  off.

         16                 MR. SHAULI: Sanitation, right.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We want --

         18                 MR. SHAULI: Right, the liabilities

         19  are a big concern. Even bigger than the sanitation.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, so what

         21  you're suggesting, I think what I'm hearing, that

         22  there is an enforcement problem?

         23                 MR. SHAULI: And I believe that this

         24  would make it even tougher.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And you think this
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          2  would make it even tougher?

          3                 MR. SHAULI: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

          5                 MR. SHAULI: That's my concern.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Anything else you

          7  wanted to say?

          8                 MR. SHAULI: Absolutely not.

          9                 Right now we have a zone-free, we do

         10  have a zone-free certain days of the week where

         11  we're not supposed to have any vendors, and we do,

         12  so obviously it's not being controlled very well at

         13  this time either.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So right now your

         15  neighborhood, you have certain days that they can't

         16  vend?

         17                 MR. SHAULI: Correct.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, thank you.

         19                 Someone else?

         20                 MR. LOGUE: Good afternoon. My name is

         21  John Logue. I'm the President of the 86th Street

         22  BID. I'm also a merchant on 86th Street.

         23                 I'd like to thank the Committee for

         24  giving us this opportunity to speak.

         25                 This bill was all about, from our
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          2  point of view, 86th Street point of view, it's all

          3  about vendor-free zones.

          4                 What are they, and what are they

          5  intended to do? Vendor-free zones are a series of

          6  blocks in New York City that the Department of

          7  Transportation, the New York City Police Department

          8  and the New York City Department of Consumer

          9  Affairs, has determined, has conditions that --

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Excuse me, Mr.

         11  Logue.

         12                 Is there a reason why there needs to

         13  be more conversation in here?

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 MR. LOGUE: That these blocks have

         16  conditions which make vendoring an impediment to

         17  public safety. Vendor-free zones also prevent

         18  in-line merchants from using any part of the

         19  sidewalk. That's the first thing that we should

         20  understand. Vendor-free zones under the current law

         21  have nothing to do with Tony neighborhoods or

         22  fashionable shopping districts, and everything to do

         23  with congestion and public safety.

         24                 By definition, this new proposal

         25  guarantees that the sidewalks of New York's
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          2  vendor-free zones will become more congested and

          3  less safe for pedestrians, including senior

          4  citizens, mothers with baby carriages, people using

          5  walkers and wheelchairs.

          6                 This alone should set aside this

          7  bill. However, the bill goes much further. Over the

          8  next 18 months, it increases the number of general

          9  vendors by 150 percent, and the number of food

         10  vendors by 100 percent in the outer boroughs, adding

         11  more congestion and unsafe conditions to New York

         12  City.

         13                 In addition, this law allows under

         14  its new proposal illegal immigrants to receive

         15  permits. How do immigrants pay sales taxes, Social

         16  Security taxes and income taxes?

         17                 Another worrisome aspect of the

         18  proposed bill, that it seems to be unenforceable. It

         19  suggests that the holder of a disabled vet permit

         20  will be able to bump a general vendor from a street

         21  face.

         22                 Who is going to enforce it? Who is

         23  going to settle disputes between vendors over prime

         24  locations?

         25                 In my view, the bill is an
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          2  unenforceable, unfunded mandate which will result

          3  not only in additional legal vendors on the streets,

          4  but also illegal vendors.

          5                 Under the current system vendor

          6  removal from vendor-free zones has a very low

          7  priority by NYPD. Even with local precinct

          8  cooperation, vendor-free zones must wait days, weeks

          9  or months for an available police truck to

         10  confiscate merchandise during vendor sweeps.

         11                 As a result, moving vendors, illegal,

         12  whether they're general vendors or not, I'm just

         13  talking about vendor-free zones, is a frustrating

         14  and time-consuming experience.

         15                 Over the last ten years the Bayridge

         16  community has reduced the number of parking spaces

         17  to create free-flowing traffic patterns, it has

         18  installed mid-block traffic lights and signals to

         19  ensure safe pedestrian crossings.

         20                 Why would we want to make our streets

         21  more congested and less pedestrian friendly?

         22                 I oppose this bill and I urge you to

         23  make our streets more pedestrian friendly.

         24                 I'd be happy to answer any questions

         25  you have.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I think everyone

          3  has testified? I have a few questions. I know

          4  Council Member Liu does, and I want to move to the

          5  next panel. So, we're not trying to ignore, we

          6  really want to hear from people. So, I just, I think

          7  it's important as we move through the day to try to

          8  address issues of fact that perhaps some people

          9  don't understand.

         10                 A license to vend in the City of New

         11  York is the only license out of the 51 that the

         12  Department of Consumer Affairs issued, where they

         13  require someone to show what we call working papers.

         14  Undocumented workers can be barbers, can be

         15  locksmiths, can be all of the other 50 things that

         16  the Consumer Affairs licenses.

         17                 It is possible to have a tax ID

         18  number and not have working papers. Now, go figure,

         19  talk to the federal government. But the fact of the

         20  matter is, it is possible, many thousands of people

         21  have a tax ID number and pay taxes. What this

         22  legislation happens to be, Councilman Barron's piece

         23  of legislation, that we wrapped up in this, simply

         24  says the vendor licenses will be looked at in the

         25  same way as all the other 50 licenses are.
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          2                 So, it's really an issue of

          3  discrimination. So, we're trying to remove that

          4  piece. But you have to be able to, in order to get a

          5  license to vend, general merchandise or food, or the

          6  First Amendment for that matter, you in this

          7  proposed legislation will have to show a tax ID

          8  number, in order to get a license.

          9                 There are also maybe some concern

         10  that when the law says to open up all of the streets

         11  of New York, that's still within the parameter that

         12  is set that the sidewalk has to be a minimum of 12

         13  feet wide, and some other restrictions that prohibit

         14  vending by just virtue of the width of the sidewalk.

         15                 You also addressed, the shop owner

         16  addressed the issue, all of the restrictions, in

         17  terms of being ten feet from the front of the store,

         18  all of those things are still and would still be in

         19  effect in the proposed legislation.

         20                 There is clearly an issue of

         21  enforcement, which is problematic and I think

         22  overriding perhaps the biggest problem we have with

         23  vending in the City of New York, whether it is

         24  getting the, quote, illegal vendors off the street,

         25  or the counterfeit goods, or getting the vendors to
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          2  live within the restrictions that are there, there

          3  are the questions of enforcement.

          4                 So, I don't want us to be confused

          5  that none of those prohibitions are taken out of

          6  existing law.

          7                 MR. LOGUE: I understand that. And

          8  with all due respect, under the current regulation,

          9  vending in Bayridge, of any kind, should be

         10  virtually impossible, since it is impossible for a

         11  vendor to set up on our sidewalks, under existing

         12  law, and be more than 20 feet from the entrance to

         13  any building, with very few exceptions.

         14                 So, in many ways we shouldn't have to

         15  have this conversation at all, because under the

         16  current law there shouldn't be a single vendor in

         17  Bayridge ever. And obviously there is a problem,

         18  because long before there was a BID on 86th Street,

         19  the Community Board asked the City of New York to

         20  investigate whether or not we could make 86th Street

         21  a vendor-free zone. It was done about 20 years ago.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: We want to take a

         23  look at that and we'll try to address that, but I

         24  appreciate your testimony about that.

         25                 Mr. Weiss, and Mr. Cusick, and for
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          2  the record, we have had several meetings, informal

          3  meetings with your Association, as we have with I

          4  think almost every stakeholder, but someone is going

          5  to say you haven't met with me, and I'll be happy to

          6  meet with you.

          7                 Would you be more amenable to the

          8  rules and regulations that we put forward in Intro.

          9  621 if we still prohibited vending on the avenues?

         10                 MR. WEISS: I think from the outset

         11  when we did have meetings with you we explained that

         12  there needs to be a comprehensive system. The word

         13  "system" is operative here.

         14                 We cannot sit down and negotiate

         15  point-by-point without looking at the totality. So,

         16  depending on what that total picture looks like, and

         17  there certainly are areas where we had common

         18  agreement.

         19                 What we're seeing, though, in this

         20  bill is there are so many different areas of this

         21  bill that don't address the issues that as we said,

         22  number one, it's not workable.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Weiss, excuse

         24  me. You're going to have to tell me what part is not

         25  addressed in this bill, because the one thing I
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          2  would tell you is that under my reading of this,

          3  this is probably the most comprehensive, so in fact

          4  what this bill is trying to do is to put a system,

          5  as you've asked for, in place.

          6                 So, I'm not sure what is it that you

          7  think is not addressed in the system, which is in

          8  fact Intro. 621, and I know in our dialogue, the

          9  main concern that seemed to be addressed were the

         10  avenues, there may be some justification for that

         11  being there.

         12                 But you need to take a few minutes

         13  and tell me what part of this, the concern you have

         14  is not addressed by this system.

         15                 MR. WEISS: Well, let's take the

         16  example of the assignment of vendors to locations,

         17  okay?

         18                 This permit that 621 proposes is not

         19  location specific. There is an issue in the morning

         20  from 5:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m., that the vendors that

         21  would be permitted on this bill are first come first

         22  served by time, who gets there first. I would like

         23  to know who is going to figure out who gets there

         24  first.

         25                 Do we expect an enforcement officer
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          2  to be on every corner where vendors are permitted

          3  deciding who got there first at 5:00 in the morning?

          4                 So then who is going to make that

          5  decision when there are disputes, which there are

          6  all the time about who belongs where. That's just

          7  one example. That's what I'm saying about it being

          8  unenforceable.

          9                 Two, the number of vendors that's

         10  permitted under this bill, three per block face, is

         11  unworkable. It's something that will inundate

         12  certain areas, including those that have high

         13  traffic.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: How many vendors do

         15  you have on the streets now?

         16                 MR. WEISS: What we have now? It

         17  depends on the area. Right now in a C6 zone, we have

         18  disabled vets and First Amendment vendors.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But I'm not

         20  distinguishing --

         21                 MR. WEISS: Two per block.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Just two?

         23                 MR. WEISS: Two disabled vets, plus

         24  the First Amendment vendors now.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And how many of
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          2  those do you get on any given day?

          3                 MR. WEISS: That many, at least.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: How many?

          5                 MR. WEISS: Two disabled vets. And

          6  First Amendment vendors.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: How many First

          8  Amendment vendors?

          9                 MR. WEISS: It depends on the day.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But on a general

         11  day?

         12                 MR. WEISS: I would say it can have as

         13  many as two, maybe more, two more, three more.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. So, two

         15  disabled vets, and the minimum, according to your

         16  testimony, two First Amendment vendors, and on any

         17  given day, six First Amendment vendors, right?

         18                 MR. WEISS: No. It depends on whether

         19  there are disabled vets on the block. If there are

         20  none, then no First Amendment vendors are allowed on

         21  the block.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. Assuming

         23  there are disabled veterans on the block, in other

         24  words, I think what I've heard you say is on those

         25  blocks you have a minimum of four vendors, right?
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          2                 MR. WEISS: I can't say on any

          3  specific day.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You just did.

          5                 MR. WEISS: Let's use your example for

          6  the process of --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You just said that

          8  you have two veterans.

          9                 MR. WEISS: You could have that many.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And then you have

         11  at least two First Amendment vendors.

         12                 MR. WEISS: Right.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And often times

         14  more than that. That's what you said.

         15                 MR. WEISS: Go ahead.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So this bill

         17  restricts and limits on a street that there only be

         18  three vendors. So, what you've just said to me now

         19  is that there is at least four and often times more

         20  vendors. What the bill says is that there can never

         21  be more than three on a block. So, I'm not sure why

         22  that causes more concern than what you said now,

         23  that you have at least four and sometimes more.

         24                 MR. WEISS: The problem is there is no

         25  rational system for figuring out who belongs there,
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          2  okay?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That may be a

          4  different issue. But what you said was that there is

          5  at least four and more. What we've said, you want to

          6  limit it to three.

          7                 MR. WEISS: You're also not asking

          8  about streets that are not in my district where

          9  there are no vendors permitted, which is another

         10  issue. All of those streets are now taken out of the

         11  Administrative Code. So there are yet other streets

         12  in the City, not having to be in my area, where

         13  right now no vending is permitted.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         15                 MR. WEISS: So there's another issue

         16  that's ignored in the new law.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Would you agree

         18  that it might be useful if you got a street where

         19  you can have any number, as long as you've got a

         20  disabled veteran, then you get unlimited number of

         21  quote/unquote First Amendment vendors? At least we

         22  have a system that only allows you to have three?

         23                 MR. WEISS: No, it doesn't work if I

         24  have a possibility of 24 at an intersection, or

         25  right off an intersection. Three per block face.
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          2  This is not three per block.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I wrote the bill, I

          4  know what it is.

          5                 MR. WEISS: Okay.

          6                 So, at any one intersection with

          7  eight corners, eight blocks coming in, we're talking

          8  24.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         10                 MR. WEISS: That's not acceptable.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And right now how

         12  many do you have?

         13                 MR. WEISS: Right now if I had four it

         14  would be a lot.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I see. Okay.

         16  Council Member Liu.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         18  Chairman.

         19                 It seems to me that most of the

         20  testimony we've heard from this panel is generally

         21  against vendors, period. And I think that this is --

         22  you talk about this bill being difficult to enforce,

         23  I think that in all practicality what's on the books

         24  today is impossible to enforce. It's impossible to

         25  even understand, from the point of view of a small

                                                            53

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  business, from the point of view of a vendor, from

          3  the point of view of a police officer, it's

          4  difficult to enforce now.

          5                 So what we have here is a bill that

          6  has been very crafted by our Chairman and this

          7  Committee, that seeks to make it easier to enforce

          8  rules and regulations concerning street vendors on

          9  our streets. So, I would really ask you to think

         10  carefully about your testimony. If you want to come

         11  here and just simply testify about your perceived

         12  evils of street vending, you're entitled to do that,

         13  but that's not helpful to us, because those evils in

         14  your mind of street vending are already there. So,

         15  what we tried to do was put together a plan that is

         16  more workable for everybody involved.

         17                 I heard some testimony about the fact

         18  that you could potentially have 24 per street corner

         19  versus the maybe three or four or five that exist

         20  today. That's, I think that is an example where we

         21  can certainly put our heads together and maybe come

         22  up with some language that would be more suitable.

         23  But that's the kind of suggestion that is helpful to

         24  this Committee. So, I would ask all of you to heed

         25  that.
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          2                 And the other thing is I would also

          3  discourage you from considering street vendors as an

          4  all encompassing category, because there are

          5  certainly different kinds of street vending from the

          6  kinds of wares and goods that they sell, the kinds

          7  of classifications and rights that are accorded to

          8  certain types of street vendors, above and beyond

          9  our City municipal law there are other laws in place

         10  here.

         11                 And, so, I would ask you not to paint

         12  all of the vendors with as broad a brush as I have

         13  heard you do today.

         14                 My question to the small business,

         15  the small businesses that are reflected here,

         16  because I think some of you represent some of the

         17  larger businesses, I have been contacted by our

         18  Business Improvement District in Flushing, and

         19  Flushing, as it is very similar to many of the

         20  neighborhoods that you mention, and many of our

         21  small businesses, they work very hard, and so many

         22  of them are opposed to street vendors on the

         23  streets.

         24                 Nonetheless, they are also aware that

         25  a balance needs to be struck, and so in Flushing we
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          2  would certainly look to make sure that whatever

          3  rules in place provide equitable access to all of

          4  the people who would want to do street vending, and

          5  at the same time make sure that small businesses are

          6  protected against an unwarranted influx of vendors,

          7  particularly vendors who duplicate each other's

          8  goods and services.

          9                 So, my last comment, Mr. Chairman, I

         10  guess this is more a comment than a question, is

         11  that if you're concerned about illegal vendors,

         12  illegal vendors are already illegal vendors, and

         13  that's a matter of enforcement, and what we try to

         14  do here is put together a legal framework that is,

         15  in my opinion, much easier to enforce than what we

         16  have on the books today.

         17                 So, my main request to you is to ask

         18  all of the BID managers and associations to work

         19  with this Committee to come up with a framework that

         20  is just more common sense than what we have today.

         21                 Any of you care to respond? Mr.

         22  Chairman, if you would allow them to.

         23                 MR. CUSICK: Yes, I would like to make

         24  a couple of comments.

         25                 Council member, with regard to
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          2  comments on vendors, let me be a little more

          3  specific. I made a general comment about working

          4  with vendors in our area. You will hear from some of

          5  the vendors today, some of the disabled veteran

          6  vendors, that are on some of the most lucrative side

          7  street locations in the City of New York. They don't

          8  just know who I am, they know me by sight because I

          9  go up and down the avenue talking to those vendors

         10  one on one.

         11                 The same is true for food vendors.

         12  You'll hear from one of the food vendor leaders

         13  today, about how we work together. You'll see

         14  testimony submitted in that direction.

         15                 With regard to the question on how

         16  many vendors do we have at any particular time, on

         17  Fifth Avenue most of the time the Avenue is

         18  restricted. We have side street presence, and

         19  generally speaking we will have at a particular

         20  intersection seven, sometimes eight vendors. This

         21  legislation will permit three at every one of the --

         22  and let me be very specific about this, between

         23  Fifth Avenue and Sixth Avenue at mid-block, vendors

         24  generally are not interested in vending. Where they

         25  want to vend is as close to Fifth Avenue as they
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          2  possibly can, because of those photos that I showed

          3  you. That's where the crowds are.

          4                 So, if you have three on the

          5  northwest corner, three on the southeast corner, all

          6  of those four intersections at the side streets, you

          7  have 12 without opening up the avenues. So that

          8  increases the number of vendors that our experience

          9  shows. But you'll go beyond that. You'll allow

         10  another six vendors of block basis that face each

         11  other between those two blocks.

         12                 So, add to those 12, and if they

         13  decide to group together by a well-populated area,

         14  such as near Tiffany or near FAO Schwarz, or near

         15  Rock Center, we will have as many as 24 grouped

         16  together, and that creates a vendor market.

         17                 And as I said to you, we went before

         18  that vendor review panel and showed how there are

         19  safety conditions that are important for this City

         20  to keep in mind. This bill eliminates that.

         21                 And the last thing I'll say is that a

         22  number of references to enforcement, we are

         23  fortunate in the Midtown area to work very closely

         24  with the Police Department. We also are fortunate to

         25  have the financial ability to hire a large number of
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          2  security guards so that enforcement is barely

          3  effective on the avenue.

          4                 This bill essentially limits

          5  enforcement, except for summonses, to exigent

          6  circumstances. We have experienced exigent

          7  circumstances repeatedly, and I'm telling you from

          8  experience, it is the worst vehicle that the City of

          9  New York has in terms of overall regulating, and to

         10  require written notice is going to make it almost

         11  entirely unworkable.

         12                 So, those are my comments. We have

         13  repeatedly worked with vendors. This will result in

         14  an increase in the number of vendors substantially.

         15  And I know I'm repeating myself, but I do need to

         16  add that in other cities there are restricted areas

         17  that that City considers extremely important to the

         18  economic vitality of their area.

         19                 You know, just in our real estate

         20  taxes, we're talking a minimum of $160 million.

         21  Please be careful not to create an atmosphere which

         22  makes those buildings less valuable.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER LIU: Thank you, Mr.

         24  Chairman.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.
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          2                 MR. LOGUE: Mr. Chairman, if I can

          3  just comment as a small business person?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Um-hmm.

          5                 MR. LOGUE: I would just like to say

          6  that I'm in the food business, okay? I, as I said,

          7  have one of the last remaining ice cream parlors in

          8  the City of New York. I understand the vending laws

          9  currently, probably better than 90 percent of the

         10  cops on the beat.

         11                 I also understand that this bill, as

         12  written does not give me any more assurances that

         13  I'm going to get any more enforcement by the Police

         14  Department, by the Department of Sanitation, than I

         15  am currently getting.

         16                 Currently 86th Street is a

         17  vendor-free zone. General vendors only. Which means

         18  food vendors are permitted, okay? That also means

         19  that I have four, three, four ice cream trucks

         20  parked in the no-standing zones that we have created

         21  on 86th Street to increase the flow of traffic and

         22  they sit there all day Saturday and Sunday.

         23                 I also understand the hotdog vendors

         24  park on the intersection, not 20 feet from the

         25  intersection, on the intersection, and that's where
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          2  they sell their goods.

          3                 I understand that 86th Street is not

          4  a food vendor-free zone, okay? I understand when

          5  First Amendment Rights' people and disabled vets

          6  sell on 86th Street. All I'm saying is the bill has

          7  no enforcement procedures, okay? Currently if we

          8  have a merchant that's out of line, and we have one

          9  merchant in the community that insists on putting

         10  racks out every day, that merchant is ticketed five

         11  days a week by Sanitation because we have a zero

         12  visibility zone, okay?

         13                 Unfortunately, that merchant goes

         14  down and pleads all of these tickets, all of these

         15  locations all over the City to next to nothing. He's

         16  decided that that's the cost of doing business,

         17  okay?

         18                 On weekends, instead of bringing his

         19  merchandise out at 2:00 when Sanitation --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Logue, we need

         21  to stay focused on the question that Mr. Liu asked,

         22  and I appreciate your comments on it, but there's a

         23  lot of people that want to testify.

         24                 MR. LOGUE: Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. I would
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          2  disagree with some of what you said, we'll talk more

          3  about that later, but, again, what I'm hearing from

          4  everybody here, and then I'm going to hear from

          5  Council Member Gentile and Gonzalez and then the

          6  next panel.

          7                 You're talking about issues of

          8  enforcement, and that seems to be where the problems

          9  are so the Administration is in the back. So, we

         10  address the issues, we, as colleagues, or this

         11  Council, look at legislation to try to create

         12  legislation that's comprehensive and understandable

         13  to our constituents, many of them being small

         14  business owners. Issues of enforcement seem to be

         15  the problem across all boundaries, whether they are

         16  traffic, whether they are the crime statistics,

         17  whether they are nuisance offenses, and this is an

         18  issue that we ought to be addressing with the Police

         19  Department, with the Department of Sanitation, but

         20  as it impacts what we're trying to do legislative,

         21  it becomes difficult for us when people say you said

         22  it's not important now. And, so, what we're trying

         23  to do in this bill, at least we think, is to make it

         24  simpler. Now, if you're saying there's a flagrant

         25  violation, because the same guy is selling hotdogs,
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          2  is too close to the intersection over and over and

          3  over again, well, this law would say that after

          4  three times he doesn't have a license, or she

          5  doesn't have a license. And what you're saying is

          6  the police never give them the first, let alone the

          7  second or the third summons. That's a problem. That

          8  needs to be addressed by talking with the

          9  Administration. That's the concern that we have.

         10                 Council Member Gentile and then

         11  Gonzalez.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Thank you,

         13  Mr. Chairman.

         14                 Basically, I wanted to also bring up

         15  this issue of enforcement, because most of the

         16  testimony I heard until the very last year was

         17  centered around particularly the enforcement of who

         18  got there first in capping the number at three, and

         19  that is, I guess, an issue of real enforcement that

         20  we have to consider.

         21                 But up until I think the last comment

         22  here by Mr. Logue, I hadn't heard anything other

         23  than that issue as making this proposal any less

         24  enforceable than what we have now in the sense that

         25  we have vendor-free zones, and we have streets that
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          2  don't qualify under the current law, and yet there

          3  are still vendors on those streets.

          4                 Ultimately it's because the

          5  enforcement agents are basically throwing their

          6  hands up.

          7                 If we cap it at three, and we figure

          8  out some way to figure out who gets there first, is

          9  there, and I know Ms. Logue just mentioned one or

         10  two other things, but is there something else that

         11  makes this less enforceable than what we currently

         12  have?

         13                 MR. WEISS: Just to repeat again --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Identify yourself

         15  for the record.

         16                 MR. WEISS: Mike Weiss, again, for the

         17  BID managers. You're not capping it at three, you're

         18  capping it at 24 at an intersection, that's what

         19  you're capping it at.

         20                 And in addition, have a system in

         21  this proposed legislation of assigning those vendors

         22  by the time they get to the space, okay? We had

         23  proposed in 110 a location-specific permit, so if

         24  the permit would say exactly where the vendor went,

         25  the lottery or the first come, first served or
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          2  whatever the system would be done in advance of

          3  issuing a permit and the permit goes with the

          4  location. That's a system that allows an officer, an

          5  enforcement agent, to see that a vendor belongs in a

          6  certain place, okay?

          7                 So, number one, a location-specific

          8  system makes much more sense in terms of

          9  enforcement. This is open season.

         10                 Two, the other point is that

         11  allowing, opening up all the zoning restrictions,

         12  basically you're taking C 4, 5 and 6 zones that now

         13  do not permit vending and opening them up to

         14  vending, and opening up all the restricted streets

         15  in New York City to vending that are now, do not

         16  permit vending, and for reasons of safety,

         17  measurements made by the City Administration. You

         18  may like it or not, but it was a system that was

         19  rational. Taking all that off, and allowing up to 24

         20  vendors on an intersection on busy streets is not

         21  acceptable.

         22                 And I could go through other

         23  provisions of the bill, but those are the main

         24  stumbling blocks here and it is so far off the mark,

         25  that we don't see it as being -- we should start out
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          2  from zero, go back to the vendors. We were working

          3  with vendors before, and have a rational system

          4  that's enforceable.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: Are you

          6  suggesting that even though some of those streets

          7  might not qualify to be eligible because they're not

          8  long enough, they're not wide enough, there is not

          9  enough distance between the stores, that they would

         10  be vending on these streets anyway; is that what

         11  you're suggesting under this legislation?

         12                 MR. WEISS: I'm not sure that I

         13  understand the question.

         14                 Could you --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENTILE: You're saying

         16  you're opening up all these other areas, but some of

         17  these areas would be ineligible because of the

         18  requirements in the bill that currently exist, the

         19  street has to be long enough, wide enough, has to be

         20  so many feet from the store.

         21                 Are you suggesting that we're still

         22  going to see vendors on those streets?

         23                 MR. CUSICK: I would suggest that --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Identify yourself.

         25                 MR. CUSICK: Tom Cusick, Fifth Avenue
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          2  Business Improvement District. I would suggest that

          3  your example is an exception. That is, those streets

          4  that would be excluded are limited to a very few

          5  number of streets, such as some of the side streets

          6  in Lower Manhattan, where a sidewalk is only about

          7  nine or ten feet wide. For the vast majority of the

          8  streets that we're talking about, especially those

          9  that have been excluded through various regulation

         10  11 issues or the street vendor panel, opening a

         11  street or closing a street, the vast number of

         12  those, those 12-foot rule examples don't apply.

         13                 I would also like to say that I don't

         14  want this Committee to leave with the impression

         15  that this is mainly an enforcement issue. This will

         16  open up 42nd Street in Midtown Manhattan, this will

         17  open up 34th Street. In those areas, in many other

         18  areas in the City, it is very easy to enforce the

         19  law. I respect my colleagues' comments about a

         20  specific neighborhood, but I'm suggesting to you

         21  that many of the Business Improvement Districts work

         22  very closely with the Police Department and by and

         23  large we do get enforcement.

         24                 Yes, there are some exceptions to

         25  that, particularly illegal vendors selling
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          2  counterfeit merchandise, which I think most of the

          3  people in this room have no sympathy for on both

          4  sides of this issue. Enforcement is not the major

          5  issue. It will become a major issue if the main

          6  vehicle is exigent circumstances and all of those

          7  previous restricted neighborhoods are opened up for

          8  additional vending.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Council Member

         10  Gonzalez, I'm sorry I didn't recognize you earlier,

         11  but you're here. Please ask your question.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ: Thank you,

         13  Councilman Reed.

         14                 I just want to say that this is not

         15  my committee, but every committee in the Council

         16  belongs to each and every one of us, including the

         17  City.

         18                 But I just want to say welcome to

         19  Sunset Park BID, and that's my district, District

         20  38. And we have had a lot of lot of issues with

         21  respect to vendors.  For many, many years the

         22  community board has been struggling with the issues

         23  in respect to where they are, whether it's a public

         24  safety issue, economic development issue, so these

         25  are issues that are not new to us and I want to
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          2  thank you very much, Councilman Reed.

          3                 But I also want to say to the BID and

          4  to the gentlemen that are here today, this here is

          5  the beginning of a process. We're going to sit, and

          6  what Councilman Reed said earlier, we want input.

          7                 I will reach out to my district

          8  because I want input. I want to assure that when we

          9  finish this off that it's done appropriately and

         10  that it's fair to each and every person who sits at

         11  the table.

         12                 But I do want to say, just to indulge

         13  you a little bit, Council Member Reed...(speaking in

         14  Spanish.)

         15                 I just wanted to explain to everyone

         16  here, that, you know, the vendor situation here is a

         17  problem for the entire City, but we're not here

         18  making a decision. We're here reaching out for

         19  input, and my office is available. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And thank you for

         21  that. Thank you, gentlemen. Appreciate it.

         22                 Next we'd like to hear from Michael

         23  Wells, Audrey Burnstein, Sean Basinski, Lorenzo

         24  Figueroa. And then we're going to hear from the

         25  disabled veterans as a group and all of the groups
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          2  that represent them.

          3                 Is Lorenzo Figueroa here? Could you

          4  come forward, please?

          5                 Ms. Bernstein? Mr. Wells? Mr.

          6  Basinski? You know, we're trying to move this

          7  meeting along, folks.

          8                 Who is Ms. Bernstein?

          9                 You know, just because sometimes you

         10  need to have a little sense of humor here. But there

         11  was a demonstration, I thought it was great. That's

         12  democracy across the street. So thank you for

         13  representing your concerns at 250 during the

         14  morning.

         15                 But several comments were made that

         16  Council Member Reed was going to get a job with the

         17  Business Improvement Districts. Didn't seem from

         18  that last panel that there was a job offer there in

         19  the making. So, I don't know, maybe the vendors have

         20  got something for me, because I'm term limited. But

         21  I appreciate it.

         22                 Yes, thank you all very much for

         23  being here.

         24                 Do you have one particular order? Any

         25  particular order you want to start in?
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          2                 MR. WELLS: I'll go first.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, the light is

          4  off, the microphone is on, and then you just tell us

          5  who you are for the record and then give us your

          6  testimony.

          7                 MR. WELLS: Thank you, councilman

          8  Reed. My name is Michael Wells.  I'm a First

          9  Amendment vendor in West Harlem on 125th Street. I'm

         10  also a member of the Street Vendor Project, and have

         11  worked some time to help submit suggestions to you,

         12  and I just have a few comments that I would just

         13  like to read on behalf of your organization, and

         14  then I'll maybe say something personally.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         16                 MR. WELLS: Good afternoon. The Street

         17  Vendor Project is a non-profit membership-based

         18  organization that so far have grown to nearly 300

         19  people from every segment of the vendor community.

         20  Food vendors, general vendors, disabled veterans,

         21  and First Amendment Vendors. We thank you for

         22  letting us testify today.

         23                 This is a complex bill, and we have

         24  not had the time in the past week to form a position

         25  on it for or against, but we would like to give you
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          2  some of our initial impressions today, and we look

          3  forward to working with the Committee in the coming

          4  months.

          5                 We believe that the basic components

          6  of this bill are good. We have asked the City to

          7  issue more general vendor licenses, so that people

          8  who were to work have some chance of getting a

          9  license without having to wait for 20 years, and

         10  this bill does that.

         11                 We have asked that streets be opened

         12  up to vending, because so many streets have been

         13  closed over the years that vendors have had to group

         14  together on a few streets that are open causing

         15  congestion. This bill does that.

         16                 We have asked for a more reasonable

         17  fine system. This bill does that and we support

         18  that.

         19                 We also support the efforts to crack

         20  down on the use of fake licenses. The people who use

         21  fake licenses only give the rest of us a bad name.

         22                 We are honest, law abiding small

         23  business people. The City should create a license

         24  that should not be copied and can only be used by

         25  the person who the license is issued to.
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          2                 As for fingerprinting, while many of

          3  our members have no problem with giving their

          4  fingerprints, some of us are concerned about what

          5  the government will do with that information.

          6                 If possible, maybe there is a way to

          7  use a pin number system so that the license can be

          8  specifically identified with the person presenting

          9  it.

         10                 There are a few other concerns that

         11  we have. We think that 5:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. rule

         12  is confusing. Vendors have generally done a good job

         13  of policing themselves.

         14                 While we don't take a position on the

         15  Ground Zero exception, we don't believe that

         16  Broadway from -- that all of Broadway from Murray

         17  Street to the Battery comprises Ground Zero.

         18                 We also don't believe that the bill

         19  does enough to ensure that food vending permits are

         20  given to people who are actually working on the

         21  streets, and not people who live out of state and

         22  who renew their permits every two years simply to

         23  make money off of people selling food.

         24                 Finally, we asked for the Council's

         25  time and help in educating the whole vendor
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          2  community about this proposal. While some voices are

          3  here today, there are still thousands of vendors out

          4  in the street who have no idea about Intro. 621, and

          5  we'd like to be involved in maybe community meetings

          6  around the City to discuss more in particular,

          7  issues in Intro. 621. And we think the people need

          8  to be heard.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         10                 Ma'am.

         11                 MS. BERNSTEIN: Okay, I think we can

         12  be heard now.

         13                 My name is Audrey Bernstein. I'm a

         14  general vendor. I'm a member of Street Vendors

         15  Project, but this is basically my own thoughts.

         16                 I think many parts of this proposal

         17  are not kind to vendors and not good for New York

         18  City.

         19                 As big business, the rich and

         20  powerful drive out the small guy, and kill the rich

         21  diversity of New York, everybody loses.

         22                 Let's not go further backward. Let's

         23  the vendors vend.

         24                 Regarding opening up all the streets

         25  and avenues and limiting the spaces, first, let's
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          2  not destruct areas where vendors have been vending

          3  for many years. It would be chaotic. It would be

          4  most unfair to vendors, to customers to

          5  neighborhoods.

          6                 It's good for customers, it's good

          7  for vendors and what customers what, to have artists

          8  in one area or several, or at least together. And

          9  book sellers in some areas, and jewelry as well.

         10  Even food vendors. In some areas it's good for them

         11  to be together serving office workers and tourists

         12  breakfast and lunch conveniently, but offering a

         13  variety. The idea of one on each block kills this

         14  natural system.

         15                 Okay, as new streets are opened,

         16  limit the number of vendors on those streets only.

         17  This will ease crowding on streets that are now a

         18  problem. As surely, some vendors will leave for

         19  areas that are less crowded and less stressful. At

         20  least give it a try. If opening more streets doesn't

         21  ease crowding in other areas, after a few months,

         22  maybe six, then try something else.

         23                 Though I don't see how these

         24  regulations could ever apply to First Amendment

         25  vendors.
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          2                 How about limiting the number of

          3  trees, street furniture, and unused outdoor cafes as

          4  well. Well, I see there is something in the bill

          5  about trees, and that's good.

          6                 Giving priority numbers to vendors,

          7  vendors are adults. They have spent many hours

          8  working out what spots work for them and the vast

          9  majority of cases vendors work out their own

         10  seniority system. They would not bump someone who

         11  had maintained a spot by being there early, and

         12  inclement weather, for years sometimes, and where he

         13  often has a relationship with his customers. Let's

         14  keep the first come gets the spot rule. At least

         15  until we give a try opening more streets than

         16  avenues.

         17                 Don't make someone move when they

         18  have already set up for the day, just to give the

         19  space to someone with a higher priority. That's

         20  really disruptive. On a newly-opened street I could

         21  see waiting to set up til 10:00 in the morning, to

         22  see if someone had priority. And then whoever is

         23  there gets the place for the day.

         24                 Measurement rules. Perhaps space

         25  between vendors should be limited on certain blocks
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          2  where many vendors like to work. But the distance

          3  required from stores and curbs should also be

          4  flexible, as it is impossible for vendors to be

          5  legal in some areas. Be realistic and don't insist

          6  on uniformed rules to fit a City that is beautifully

          7  diverse.

          8                 And the last, fingerprinting. I think

          9  we should go along with whatever the ACLU says.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         11                 MR. BASINSKI: Thank you, Council

         12  member. I'm Sean Bazinski, from the Street Vendor

         13  Project. And Michael Wells made the statement of the

         14  project. Judy Mukerinda and I just are sitting here

         15  in case there were any questions or any other

         16  things, but otherwise we'll step down if there are

         17  no questions. Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Then you'll give

         19  Mr. Figueroa a seat, I think he wanted to testified.

         20                 Mr. Figueroa, yes. We've been joined

         21  by Council Member Charles from Brooklyn.

         22                 Thank you for joining us, Council

         23  member.

         24                 MS. GUTIEREZ: If I may, Council

         25  members, I will translate for Mr. Figueroa. He only
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          2  speaks Spanish. And I will introduce myself, my name

          3  is Prisciliano Gutierez. I'm a staff attorney,

          4  Esperanza del Barrio. We are a community-based

          5  organization.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Excuse me, I didn't

          7  want the panelists to leave, there are some

          8  questions. I was simply asking you to let Mr.

          9  Figueroa have a seat. If you'd come back up I would

         10  appreciate it. Thank you.

         11                 Yes, please begin.

         12                 MS. GUTIEREZ: Okay. My name is

         13  Prisciliano Gutierez. I'm a staff attorney and

         14  Executive Director of Esperanza del Barrio. We are a

         15  community-based organization in East Harlem. Your

         16  district, Chairperson. And Mr. Figueroa belongs to

         17  an affiliated group member called Fifth Avenue

         18  Street Vendors in Sunset Park Brooklyn, and he would

         19  like to speak now.

         20                 MR. FIGUEROA: (Through the

         21  interpreter.) I vend in this piece of Brooklyn. I am

         22  a general vendor and I sell kids' toys.

         23                 He also sells cell phones and toys

         24  for babies.

         25                 I am a citizen of this country. I am
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          2  retired, and I vend because I need to supplement my

          3  income to buy medicine.

          4                 I've applied to Medicaid several

          5  times but they told me I'm not eligible.

          6                 I would like to say that we actually

          7  need more vendors in the street in Brooklyn, and I

          8  sell on 52nd and Fifth Avenue, and sometimes there's

          9  not enough vendors there to supply the customers.

         10                 We are here today to see if there's a

         11  way that we could get a license. Not just me but all

         12  our other sisters and brothers that need licenses.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And Mr. Figueroa

         14  doesn't have a license now?

         15                 MS. GUTIEREZ: No.

         16                 MR. FIGUEROA: (Through the

         17  interpreter.) I've been several times to 42 Broadway

         18  and they tell me you're a veteran and you're not

         19  getting a license.

         20                 So, I ask myself, I am a United

         21  States citizen and when I go vote and exercise that

         22  right, I am not asked whether you are a veteran or

         23  not, I just go --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, would you ask

         25  Mr. Figueroa, could we speak specifically to the
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          2  introduction, this legislation? I appreciate his

          3  history, but there is legislation that we want to

          4  direct comment to.

          5                 Legislation would expand the number

          6  of licenses that are there, so would I be taking a

          7  leap to say that he is supportive of that part of

          8  this?

          9                 MS. GUTIEREZ: Okay, I will try to

         10  supplement also his testimony. What he's saying is

         11  he agrees that more licenses should be given, which

         12  is what the bill does. It increases general

         13  merchandise licenses.

         14                 However, even the membership of our

         15  district groups, and we have members from the Bronx,

         16  Brooklyn and East Harlem, also some in Washington

         17  Heights, 1,000, I guess almost 1,200 increase that

         18  is being proposed may not be enough. Just our

         19  membership alone is about 600 vendors who are

         20  unlicensed and each of them knows that these three

         21  under vendors who are unlicensed. So the license

         22  vending problem is huge, and this bill attempts to

         23  do something about it, and I think for general

         24  merchandise it's giving some more opportunity for

         25  getting licenses, but what Mr. Figueroa is saying it
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          2  may not be enough. There are so many people who are

          3  out there vending without a license that the

          4  increase needs to be more substantial to fix that

          5  problem.

          6                 MR. FIGUEROA: (Through the

          7  interpreter.) So, basically giving more licenses

          8  would let us vend legally. We will not be victims of

          9  police abuse. I have been arrested, my merchandise

         10  has been thrown and have been hand --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So that's the drift

         12  of this. He thinks this is good, but you should have

         13  more licenses?

         14                 MS. GUTIEREZ: Exactly.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Right? Okay, thank

         16  you very much.

         17                 Is there anything else specific to

         18  this intro he wants to say?

         19                 MR. GUTIEREZ: I'm sorry, and I failed

         20  to translate, he and everyone else is willing to pay

         21  taxes and pay the dues necessary for vending.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         23  much.

         24                 Council Member Barron has a question.

         25  Why don't you let him sit there. If you're not going
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          2  to testify, let Mr. Wells have a seat.

          3                 Mr. Figueroa, I'm sorry, I want the

          4  people to testify to please sit so we can ask them

          5  questions. Thank you very much. If you didn't

          6  testify, then don't take up the seat.

          7                 Mr. Barron.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you,

          9  Chairman Reed. I just wanted to thank you and your

         10  office for doing a tremendous amount of work on a

         11  very complex issue, but I just wanted to publicly

         12  state that my name was prematurely signed onto the

         13  bill. I think there are some things that I need to

         14  see worked out, as I told you in private, that I am

         15  not supportive of, the fingerprinting, nor the

         16  fining of the carts. And I think that there are some

         17  serious issues around First Amendments and limiting

         18  vendors in terms of those issues. So, I just wanted

         19  to let everyone know that I want to work through

         20  these things.

         21                 I think this is the first of a series

         22  of hearings that we'll probably have, and I think

         23  some of those changes I'd like to see worked on

         24  before I put my final signature on the bill.

         25                 But I do want to commend you, because
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          2  this is a very tremendous complicated, very complex

          3  bill that we're going through and for the work of

          4  your office, I will continue to work with you and

          5  vendors so that we get the final product that is

          6  reasonable for all parties concerned.

          7                 Thank you very much, Mr. Chair.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you, Council

          9  member.

         10                 Does anyone want to comment on the

         11  part, we were saying in the beginning that we want

         12  to incorporate the language of Council Member

         13  Barron, remove the requirement for people to have

         14  working papers; anybody want to comment on that?

         15                 MS. GUTIEREZ: My name is Prisciliano

         16  Gutierez, I'm staff attorney at Esperanza del

         17  Barrio, and I would like to say that Council Member

         18  Barron's bill is semi-incorporated in this bill,

         19  because this bill is silent on the issue. But we

         20  would like to have this have the language of

         21  Executive Order 41 included in this bill and we've

         22  said that to your counsel already, and they seem to

         23  have no objection.

         24                 So, in other words, in incorporating

         25  Council Member Barron's bill into 621 is a
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          2  possibility, but I also understand they remain

          3  separate bills.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, we just need

          5  to blend them. The issue is we're going to remove

          6  that restriction, is that a good idea?

          7                 MS. GUTIEREZ: That is a good idea.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That's what I was

          9  trying to hear someone tell me. Yes or no.

         10                 MS. GUTIEREZ: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, thank you.

         12  Anyone else have any more comment? No?

         13                 Yes, sir. Please come and state your

         14  name.

         15                 MR. CORINDA: My name is Jenimou

         16  Corinda. I'm an organizer of Street Vendor Project.

         17  And I would like just to say something. I think I'm

         18  in favor of this bill, and what most of our members

         19  was asking is the fingerprint thing is a big issue.

         20                 But I think most of, a lot of vendors

         21  didn't have a chance to educate all the vendors

         22  about this complicated issue, and I think we cannot

         23  just come in here and like Council Member had said

         24  before, and raise our concern without giving input.

         25  And the inputs we give, for instance, for the
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          2  fingerprint, we think is the good idea to have that,

          3  is the pin number, because some of --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm not sure I

          5  understand what a pin number is, sir.

          6                 MR. CORINDA: The pin number like when

          7  you go open a bank account.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

          9                 MR. CORINDA: You give your pin

         10  number, so the same thing when you go for license,

         11  instead of asking your fingerprint, they give

         12  everybody like a pin number so nobody would have the

         13  fingerprint taken.

         14                 I think this is just the beginning

         15  and we need all like we did a lot of working,

         16  proposing also this bill, part of it, not all of it,

         17  we didn't propose the fingerprints and the license

         18  for the arts, for the artists, but I think the big

         19  part is the, the big picture is we need to educate

         20  more vendors for what is good and what is bad, I

         21  think we need to come on the ground for everybody.

         22  But personally I think this bill is, I'm in favor of

         23  the bill.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         25                 Any other comments. Thank you.
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          2                 We're going to have, we're trying to

          3  hear from as many communities as we can, mindful of

          4  the clock. I believe this is a group representing,

          5  these are individuals representing disabled veteran

          6  vendors. They may not have all the groups who

          7  represent them, but we're going to try our best.

          8                 Beazer Pitiger. Is he here? Ben

          9  Simmons? Mr. Simmons? Dan Rossi. David Fox. Somebody

         10  show me a hand. David Fox? Ralph DeTorro. Ronald

         11  Johnson. And that's all I can fit at the table right

         12  now, guys.

         13                 We need to get some women veterans

         14  vendors up here disabled.

         15                 Just so that people are more confused

         16  -- no. Just so people understand, in the context of

         17  trying to put this legislation together, we took

         18  into consideration all, as I think I said in my

         19  opening statement, all the various precedents that

         20  were set in lawsuits against the City, et cetera, et

         21  cetera, and the state law that's now in place

         22  relates to disabled veterans, vendors in general. In

         23  the one system that we were able to come up with

         24  would require everyone to be licensed across the

         25  board - First Amendment, food vendors, general
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          2  vendors. Food and First Amendment and general

          3  vendors, as you now know are licensed. But in order

          4  to control, which the law allows the City to do, any

          5  municipality can control time, place and manner,

          6  that is why that structure was put in place. Just so

          7  people have some general understanding, I didn't

          8  just make this up one day, but concern was, as has

          9  been expressed that there are too many vendors on a

         10  street, and that's where the congestion comes from.

         11  That seemed to be a large concern that people had.

         12                 And that once you opened up the

         13  streets to any kind of vendor, you'd get significant

         14  numbers of other vendors that you can no longer

         15  control, unless you have a system that's uniform in

         16  place, and that's where the structure of one food

         17  vendor, one general vendor and one First Amendment

         18  vendor came from. I just want to give you that

         19  context.

         20                 Also, since in fact what exists in

         21  law right now is a priority system, by virtue of the

         22  fact that the disabled veterans have priority over

         23  different types of vendors, et cetera, et cetera,

         24  the system that people are talking about, in terms

         25  of priority, was also put in there not to disturb
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          2  what exists in law now. The fact is that the

          3  disabled veterans and the veterans have a higher

          4  status than other general vendors, and that is why

          5  that particular piece was put in place.

          6                 We assume, we hope, we assume and we

          7  hope, that the tradition as has been spoken about,

          8  as how people don't try to push someone off, who

          9  established themselves on 289th Street, I'm making

         10  up a street here, that that person has established

         11  themselves there and that there's a tradition of

         12  respecting that. Well, that would be great, except

         13  I've just heard from other people to say that what

         14  we need to know is who is going to decide which one

         15  of these people was here first and who has a number.

         16  Well, some people are saying we'd never have that

         17  problem because everybody is going to respect the

         18  other person once they've established themselves.

         19                 None of what we put together would

         20  change that. If there was respect for the person

         21  that was on that corner, and let that person

         22  continue to be there, there are no problems. They

         23  don't exist.

         24                 This law does not create a problem

         25  where there is not one now. At least that's what my

                                                            88

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  sense of it is. So, I wanted to try to lay that out

          3  because people may not have understood that part of

          4  it.

          5                 Gentlemen, thank you for being here.

          6  Thank you for your patience. I want you to try to be

          7  concise, please, and speak specifically to the bill,

          8  not the history of vending in New York.

          9                 MR. PITIGER: Well, I think, first off

         10  my name is Beazer Pitiger. I'm a licensed disabled

         11  veteran. I've been involved in the implementation of

         12  legislation to provide a preference and a benefit to

         13  disabled veteran vendors on a statewide level.

         14                 This has been ongoing from

         15  administration to administration, and without

         16  understanding a certain relevance to these issues,

         17  you're not going to dispatch and clarify a lot of

         18  misnomers.

         19                 When you identify a priority system,

         20  this is a priority system within our own unit of

         21  specialized vending. It doesn't take into account

         22  food vendors, general vendors. This is a state law

         23  providing a privilege to disabled veterans. Long,

         24  hard fought war with the City of New York with

         25  Business Improvement Districts, but finally, in
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          2  1991, they disenfranchised the disabled veteran

          3  vending community with a Sanders/Goodman bill, which

          4  relegated us to general vendors.

          5                 In 1995 they threw us a meatless bone

          6  with site-specific locations, Jerome Avenue in the

          7  Bronx, Cropsy Avenue. In 1998 we finally came to a

          8  reasonable opening up, a foothold. That law had a

          9  sunset. For awhile General Business Law 35 was

         10  implemented and there were many outcries, as the

         11  City was well aware of. Then we entered into

         12  meaningful negotiations and finally came up with the

         13  amending of general business law 35-A to allow 105

         14  disabled veterans within the Midtown corridor, the

         15  balance of which vend outside. That's where we are

         16  now.

         17                 This preference allows disabled

         18  veterans to vend on restricted and prohibited

         19  streets where other vending does not take place.

         20                 Why shouldn't we have a benefit, a

         21  preference.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Excuse me, Mr.

         23  Pitiger.

         24                 MR. PITIGER: Okay, I'll continue.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: How does the
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          2  introduction, proposed Intro. 621, disturb that

          3  system?

          4                 MR. PITIGER: It neutralizes the State

          5  legislation in central terms. It castrates the

          6  disabled veteran vending community. It makes

          7  castratos of us. It vends this, after reviewing it

          8  carefully, it's a design for disaster. It's a

          9  predatory piece of legislation that's going to allow

         10  survival of the fittest. It doesn't take the meek

         11  and the weak as Joe Statika over there, Battle of

         12  the Bulge, okay? Who is going to protect his

         13  interests? Not this vending law.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm not sure, you

         15  need to be a little bit more specific because I

         16  think what I was trying to do here was to preserve

         17  what's in there now, and as I understand it right

         18  now --

         19                 MR. PITIGER: Okay --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- Let me finish

         21  the question, please.  You all have licenses with

         22  numbers on them.

         23                 MR. PITIGER: Okay, let's get into the

         24  priority system as this legislation --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And you got --
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          2                 MR. PITIGER: Three categories of

          3  priority --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Pitiger, I'm

          5  asking the question. Please.

          6                 MR. PITIGER: Three categories, and

          7  then it goes into a vending scheme, or a vending

          8  scam.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Pitiger --

         10                 MR. PITIGER: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: -- I'm asking a

         12  question.

         13                 You have a license with a number on

         14  it now, right?

         15                 MR. PITIGER: Correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: A disabled veteran

         17  does, right?

         18                 MR. PITIGER: Right. You know how that

         19  came about to be?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: No, I don't want to

         21  know that right now.

         22                 MR. PITIGER: Okay.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I want you to just

         24  answer my question.

         25                 MR. PITIGER: Correct.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And someone else

          3  has a license that may be a higher number, correct?

          4                 MR. PITIGER: Correct.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And if those two

          6  people were trying to vend in the same place, would

          7  one of them have a priority?

          8                 MR. PITIGER: That's correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And they'd have a

         10  priority based on what?

         11                 MR. PITIGER: Theoretically.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, there's a

         13  law. So they would have a priority based on the

         14  numbering system, correct?

         15                 MR. PITIGER: Correct.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So how does the

         17  system that we have proposed right now subvert that?

         18                 MR. PITIGER: First off, the disabled

         19  veteran vending community, as water finds its own

         20  level, has implemented within our context.  Priority

         21  systems do exist, and occasionally there is bumping

         22  that goes on, but what happens is disabled veterans

         23  share lucrative vending locations amongst

         24  themselves.

         25                 It could be one with a higher

                                                            93

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  priority or a lower priority, and we somehow try to

          3  integrate that. So, maybe off of one location four

          4  and five families exist, okay? We're not talking

          5  about site specific, as I heard earlier, because

          6  that will never work.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: How does this law

          8  change the situation?

          9                 MR. PITIGER: That law neutralizes. As

         10  I said earlier, there's a vending scheme, the scheme

         11  being time, okay? Three vendors of the same category

         12  could come to the same block face at the same time.

         13  So, you have three food vendors at that, then

         14  another vendor comes who is not in that category.

         15  First he has to find which vendor is the lowest

         16  priority, and then he says, excuse me, would you

         17  please put an egg in your shoe and beat it? Yeah,

         18  he's going to move, right? And maybe he will move

         19  after repeated effort in three hours. And then maybe

         20  a cop will come to a location. It's not doable. It's

         21  a design for disaster.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I thought you said

         23  at the beginning of this testimony that you guys

         24  have worked all of this out so you all respect one

         25  another? Didn't I hear you say that?
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          2                 MR. PITIGER: Amongst ourselves.

          3  You're now infusing other categories of vending into

          4  this mix, other than the vendors --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, as my

          6  understanding of the law, that if you're a disabled

          7  veteran and you're on the corner, right now any

          8  number of people who vend under the rubric of First

          9  Amendment can vend; is that right?

         10                 MR. PITIGER: That's correct.

         11                 An unrelated amount of First

         12  Amendment vendors can come. Once a disabled, it's a

         13  policy that a disabled veteran open the restrictive

         14  and prohibitive block face, okay?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That's right.

         16                 MR. PITIGER: So, not always is the

         17  presence of a disabled veteran there. So, in that

         18  event the block face remains closed, okay?

         19                 In negotiating this bill, 35-A, the

         20  General Business Law Amendment with the State, we

         21  gave up a lot of real estate which concerns for the

         22  greater good of the community of the City of New

         23  York, okay? Not fairly at times.

         24                 But we did do that. We have finally

         25  found a level and we're enjoying it, okay? What's
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          2  wrong with that.

          3                 Now you want to neutralize the state

          4  law. First of all, this piece, as I read it, has so

          5  many --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm not sure what

          7  you're holding up. Is that our legislation that

          8  you're holding up?

          9                 MR. PITIGER: Yes.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         11                 MR. PITIGER: It has so many

         12  congruencies with federal rulings, with state law,

         13  it's just not going to fly. This is not only going

         14  to sink on its own merits, but in the legal --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, it's your

         16  testimony that somehow the legislation that we

         17  propose neutralizes the status of the disabled vet

         18  community?

         19                 MR. PITIGER: That's correct. Not only

         20  does it neutralize it, but it neutralizes the status

         21  of all vending, because it pits vendors against

         22  vendors.

         23                 If you had a McDonalds's franchise on

         24  a block face, would you open up six other

         25  McDonalds's franchises on the same block face? Would
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          2  you?

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm not sure -- if

          4  this legislation that's proposed only allows --

          5                 MR. PITIGER: That's what it does, it

          6  dilutes vending.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: It only allows one

          8  of each kind of vendor, so if you're going to use

          9  this analogy of McDonalds, it only allows one

         10  McDonalds on a block.

         11                 MR. PITIGER: Councilman Reed, you

         12  keep going back to that one, you know, only three,

         13  it seems so --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Uncomplicated.

         15                 MR. PITIGER: It's not uncomplicated.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What's complicated

         17  about it? I don't get it, Mr. Pitiger, what is

         18  complicated about one street having one general

         19  vendor, one food vendor and one -- what is

         20  complicated about that as a concept?

         21                 MR. PITIGER: Okay. Wait, wait, wait,

         22  wait. As you spoke earlier about rules and

         23  regulations and the Administrative Code, doorways,

         24  sidewalk, okay? Let's say you have an area, a block

         25  face where there is only really one legal vending
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          2  location, who gets it? Which priority number, if

          3  number one, number one and number one come to the

          4  same block face at the same time, okay? Give me your

          5  take on that scenario?

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That's a good

          7  question.

          8                 MR. PITIGER: I'll tell you who gets

          9  it, the guy who can kick the other guy's ass gets

         10  it. That's right. That's exactly who gets it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I see, okay.

         12                 MR. PITIGER: Joe Sadigas gets it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Because he is

         14  tougher than anybody else, that's it?

         15                 MR. PITIGER: No, he's less tough. He

         16  gets it in the back.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         18                 MR. PITIGER: He gets his walking

         19  papers.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Are there any other

         21  parts of this bill that you have concerns about?

         22                 MR. PITIGER: Oh, there's plenty.

         23  There's plenty.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. Well, why

         25  don't we give others a chance to testify. We've got
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          2  another 30 people signed up. Thank you.

          3                 Mr. Rossi.

          4                 MR. ROSSI: Oh, okay. Good afternoon.

          5  My name is Dan Rossi. I'm a disabled vet. I also

          6  represent probably all the food vendors, legitimate

          7  guys. And what I want to do is I really want to hit

          8  on this real quick, to give you some pointers.

          9                 You can open up all the streets that

         10  are presently closed. How many streets are that?

         11  Does anybody know?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Tell us.

         13                 MR. ROSSI: Okay, 690 block faces in

         14  Manhattan alone. And the only question there is

         15  enough locations are going to be opened, to

         16  compensate for the vendors that are going to be

         17  moved. And that really applies to food vendors and

         18  artists.

         19                 Once you do the math, then you see if

         20  something is going to work.

         21                 As far as artists go, the First

         22  Amendment and the licensing, I'm 1,000 percent

         23  against licensing a First Amendment vendor. It's the

         24  same thing as putting a tag on them. And the way

         25  government works is they take one thing and twist it

                                                            99

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  into another. So, these men, all of us, we all have

          3  First Amendment rights, we should keep our First

          4  Amendment rights.

          5                 Fingerprinting. I met you in the

          6  office and you gave me an example of why people

          7  should be fingerprinted. Do you remember you said

          8  that at the Republican National Convention if

          9  someone got arrested they would get fingerprinted,

         10  and I thought about that for awhile, and the one key

         11  word was "arrested. " So when I get arrested,

         12  fingerprint me. But until then, don't fingerprint

         13  me.

         14                 And personally, I'm a disabled vet, I

         15  have my fingerprints. I just don't see where the

         16  fingerprinting does anything for identification,

         17  unless a cop has a list of fingerprints and I don't

         18  get it. So, that's my view.

         19                 As far as disabled veterans, this law

         20  is going to affect disabled veterans, but the only

         21  ones it's going to affect are men with blue permits,

         22  because they have a special privilege over the

         23  disabled veterans with yellow permits.

         24                 I've always been opposed to this, and

         25  I've been working, before any of these gentlemen got
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          2  involved, I was up in Albany screaming and shouting.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You were opposed to

          4  somebody having status different?

          5                 MR. ROSSI: Right. Because it's very

          6  simple. There are hundreds and hundreds of block

          7  faces now open in Midtown Manhattan, but there are

          8  only 300 disabled vets. Why only 105 can go and

          9  work?

         10                 These men that have made their deals,

         11  it's just money. You know, that's what it is, it's

         12  business. If I can keep out the other 250 vets, I'll

         13  do it.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes, but if I'm

         15  opening up another 600 streets --

         16                 MR. ROSSI: That's phenomenal.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: By your estimate,

         18  then that would take care of all the people who are

         19  now being pushed aside.

         20                 You would be supportive of that?

         21                 MR. ROSSI: Oh, absolutely supportive

         22  of it.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Oh, okay.

         24                 MR. ROSSI: But I want to go a little

         25  further because I do think there should be
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          2  protection.

          3                 Now, the way I devised the numbers is

          4  by date of discharge. If this gentleman here was in

          5  the battle of the bulge, which is World War 2, he

          6  sure the hell has preference over me from Vietnam.

          7  He's been carrying his disability 30 years before I

          8  was born. So, he deserves the preference, and that's

          9  the way you do the numbers. And to go a little step

         10  further into that --

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: To go a little step

         12  further. So, it's a question of how we do the

         13  numbers, but you would agree to a priority system?

         14                 MR. ROSSI: Oh, absolutely.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         16                 MR. ROSSI: Just for protection. And

         17  so many street and block faces, there's more than

         18  enough. You have to work with real honest numbers,

         19  and then you see it. The numbers change later on.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So then there would

         21  be enough for everybody?

         22                 MR. ROSSI: There's more than enough.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         24                 MR. ROSSI: As long as the disabled

         25  vet is getting the preference --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes.

          3                 MR. ROSSI: Then there shouldn't be

          4  any complaints --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And that's what

          6  this bill is doing?

          7                 MR. ROSSI: That's exactly what it's

          8  doing.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. You're

         10  supportive of that.

         11                 MR. ROSSI: I want to step it up.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         13                 MR. ROSSI: I want to add something to

         14  it.

         15                 A lot of us thought, what about the

         16  vets who have white licenses, well they have to be

         17  protected too.

         18                 But I came up with just a little

         19  different scheme. I think the priority should be

         20  disabled American veterans, disabled persons, then

         21  veterans, then white licenses. And the reason I put

         22  the disabled person before the veteran is because

         23  that veteran who is healthy has many more

         24  opportunities to work than the disabled person.

         25                 You can do it any which way, this is
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          2  the way I see it.

          3                 And, again, there is no limit on the

          4  number of merchandise licenses a disabled vet can

          5  get. There is no limit on disabled veterans getting

          6  licenses to sell merchandise. I would like that

          7  extended to also food. That a disabled veteran walks

          8  in there and he wants -- he wants it to be general

          9  merchandise, he wants it to be food, you give him a

         10  permit. There is no reason why that man shouldn't

         11  get it.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: The law as it is

         13  proposed does not restrict the number of licenses

         14  for disabled veterans?

         15                 MR. ROSSI: Right. Absolutely not.

         16  That's a good thing.

         17                 But I wanted it to be extended into

         18  food vending, into food permits.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: All right.

         20                 MR. ROSSI: If they want to be food,

         21  let them be food. They had it before, it was taken

         22  away from them.

         23                 I also represent a lot of food

         24  vendors. You had three hearings and I attended every

         25  hearing from beginning to end, and food vending was
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          2  not allowed to be mentioned at those hearings.

          3                 This bill --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: That was probably a

          5  mistake on my part.

          6                 MR. ROSSI: Well, that's okay, but

          7  this bill doesn't even come close to touching on the

          8  problems in the food vending industry.

          9                 I've never been contacted, none of

         10  the men I know have been contacted by anyone, to sit

         11  down and talk about the food vending, and that's got

         12  to be extended.

         13                 And just to talk about the BIDs and

         14  their comments earlier: A lot of people here are new

         15  guys, I sat down and I was part of Intro. 110. I

         16  worked for six months with the BID, with the

         17  Administration, with the Council, and the BIDs were

         18  100 percent for this until they go here, and then

         19  they came here and say we don't want anything to do

         20  with 110.

         21                 So, for these men that came up here

         22  and say anything about 110, it was a great piece of

         23  work, except they were the first ones to say they

         24  didn't want it.

         25                 And to go a little further with the
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          2  BIDs, we have never been contacted by the Fifth

          3  Avenue Association to sit down for anything. Now,

          4  everyone knows me in the food vending industry, and

          5  they know the people that are around us, none of us,

          6  and we reached out to the Tom Cusick a hundred

          7  times, he will not sit down with me. And the reason

          8  he won't sit down with me is because I'm not going

          9  to sell anybody out, and that's what you're going to

         10  see up here. You're going to see people walk in here

         11  and say certain things that only help them because

         12  they're in a position of money.

         13                 So, right now, as far as I see it in

         14  this room, the only representative in this room that

         15  represents food vending so far is me.

         16                 I don't see anyone else.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, thank you.

         18                 Mr. DiToro, how are you today?

         19                 MR. DI TORO: Very good. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're going to

         21  talk to me today?

         22                 MR. DI TORO: Absolutely.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, great.

         24                 MR. DI TORO: No problem.

         25                 My name is Ralph DiToro, and I'm a
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          2  disabled veteran vendor. Getting back to what Mr.

          3  Rossi said about the bill, I just want to talk to

          4  the second part to the bill, that's what you're

          5  interested in.

          6                 When we talk about a veteran,

          7  veterans are taught never to leave another brother

          8  on the battlefield. In this bill, it does. It leaves

          9  our white licensed veterans, it takes away their

         10  unlimited cap because they're going to be put in the

         11  general vendor category, which is going to have a

         12  cap. Currently they have no cap. So, that's in

         13  opposition to it.

         14                 And when we go on further, and again,

         15  I'd like to echo what Mr. Rossi said about

         16  absolutely no fingerprinting, that's an outright,

         17  that's a disgrace for anybody to be fingerprinted

         18  before you get arrested.

         19                 We, I, in my group, also extremely

         20  support the artists in their movement --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Let me just say

         22  that, you know, within the 51 licenses that the

         23  Consumer Affairs issues, there are 15 or 16 of them

         24  I don't know, that get fingerprinted. I'm not quite

         25  sure of the issue. I think you took to some extent
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          2  the example that I gave out of context, I was

          3  talking about, if I get arrested at a political

          4  demonstration I get fingerprinted, but if you get

          5  arrested for selling illegal goods or so and so the

          6  police are concerned that they are not able to

          7  fingerprint. So, it was a little out of context, I

          8  think, Mr. Rossi.

          9                 Right now, at least 15 licenses are

         10  fingerprinted by the Department of Consumer Affairs.

         11  We're not setting a precedent.

         12                 MR. DI TORO: I understand that.

         13                 Okay, let me go on then.

         14                 I would like to address the issue

         15  about opening up Broadway. Broadway is basically

         16  known as the Canyon of heroes. We talk about our

         17  troops serving our country in Iraq at the present

         18  time, and we call them heroes. We appreciate their

         19  service, or some of us do, appreciate their service,

         20  and when they come home and they want to come to

         21  vend on Broadway, they're going to be denied this

         22  privilege. They're going to be denied the privilege

         23  of vending in the Canyon of Heroes. This is an area

         24  that they've protected. We all sleep under the

         25  blanket of freedom that these young men and women
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          2  are providing for us now, and by doing this it's so

          3  disrespectful, even to consider it.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Aren't they

          5  prohibited from being there now?

          6                 MR. DI TORO: Originally --

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: No, no, I just

          8  asked you, isn't there a prohibition against vending

          9  on --

         10                 MR. DI TORO: Yes, with the exception

         11  of that there are food vendors that are allowed down

         12  the block.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         14                 MR. DI TORO: The vets aren't.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: They're not.

         16                 So you're not happy with that now?

         17                 MR. DI TORO: Absolutely not.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But this law is not

         19  changing that. You'd like to see us change, you'd

         20  like to see --

         21                 MR. DI TORO: I'd like it opened.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         23                 MR. DI TORO: Absolutely.

         24                 Going back to, talk about exigent

         25  circumstances, here is the catch-all of this bill,
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          2  that's how I find that to be, the catch-all is

          3  exigent circumstances. And let me go over my notes

          4  here.

          5                 If we're so concerned about traffic

          6  and pedestrian traffic and people stepping on one

          7  another, number one, we have a plan for street

          8  furniture initiative that the BIDs support

          9  tremendously, and they're back -- and the bill has

         10  to be approved or the contracts wouldn't have to be

         11  approved by the BIDs. I have read the proposals, and

         12  they have to have their input before anybody gets a

         13  contract. So, if they're so concerned about

         14  pedestrian traffic, then they'll be against street

         15  furniture initiative. Totally.

         16                 Number two, they want to talk about

         17  congestion on Fifth Avenue, Mr. Cusick in that back?

         18  Well, Mr. Donald Trump has over 35 planters in front

         19  of his building.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Di Toro, your

         21  comments are directed here to the Chair.

         22                 MR. DI TORO: I'm sorry. Sorry, sir.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         24                 MR. DI TORO: Mr. Donald Trump has 35

         25  planters in front of his building on Fifth Avenue
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          2  and blocking cross traffic for the sole purpose of

          3  keeping vending out of in front of his building.

          4                 This was substantiated, the total

          5  planter issue, was substantiated by Detective

          6  Donofrio, Donofrio, who heads the peddler squad, who

          7  at a court conference that we had with him, he

          8  admitted the planters are put there to keep vendors

          9  out.

         10                 So, if we're so concerned about

         11  congestion, then why are all of these planters being

         12  allowed to put out there? Donald Trump, 35 on the

         13  block. Have you ever been in front of his building?

         14  Okay? Thirty-five. Thirty-five planters. And I'd

         15  like to agree with Mr. Cusick on one thing, the

         16  Police Department and his association have a very,

         17  very close relationship, and very close that it

         18  extends to somewhat criminality in the fact that

         19  when you talk about exigent circumstances, now in

         20  your bill you want to give the police officer the

         21  opportunity to close down vending based on

         22  pedestrian or vehicular traffic. In the old bill

         23  it's not there.

         24                 The old bill states that they can

         25  only close the street based on an emergency parade
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          2  or something else. This is giving the police

          3  officer, say, oh, there's only five people down.

          4  They get a call from the BID - move em. And it

          5  happened because I've witnessed it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, let me just

          7  say this about that part of it, and you may be

          8  right, I have to look at --

          9                 MR. DI TORO: I wish you would.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'll tell you what

         11  the intent of the bill was, was to not change the

         12  exigent circumstance status that exists right now.

         13                 What we were trying to address was

         14  the concern and the complaints that we got from the

         15  vendors that nobody ever said what the exigent

         16  circumstance was. The police just simply came and

         17  said there is an exigent circumstance, you've got to

         18  close the street, you've got to get rid of it.

         19                 So, what the bill is trying to simply

         20  do is to not change any of that status, but just

         21  simply say that in the event, to allow the police to

         22  do that, because we're not going to take the

         23  authority away from the police to protect public

         24  safety, but we want them to at least state in

         25  writing, what I'm told now is they just say that
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          2  there is an exigent circumstance, but they don't

          3  have to articulate what it was.

          4                 So, that's the intent of the bill. I

          5  just want you --

          6                 MR. DI TORO: The actual law, if you

          7  read it, says exigent circumstances is based around

          8  congestion caused by parades, emergencies, it says

          9  nothing about a day that maybe 50 people walk down

         10  the block, and it seems crowded. The catch-all here,

         11  in the areas where the BIDs that have a lot of money

         12  and that can afford hiring top level police officers

         13  that are retired into their position for a reason,

         14  you'll notice that a cop will come down a street and

         15  call presumptive exigent circumstances. The street

         16  is closed because we presume there's going to be

         17  traffic. We beat those tickets. But because you're

         18  not allowed to do that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, we are going

         20  to try to address that concern.

         21                 I'm not sure I understood, how do you

         22  feel about the fact that we're going to provide more

         23  streets for vending?

         24                 MR. DI TORO: Very skeptical. Very,

         25  very skeptical about that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're skeptical

          3  that that's a reality?

          4                 MR. DI TORO: Yes. Very much so.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

          6                 MR. DI TORO: I don't think, knowing

          7  what has transpired and all due respects to the

          8  Council, how powerful these people are, how powerful

          9  they are. They're worse than the Mafia.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         11                 So, as a concept, you would support

         12  the idea of opening up more streets for vending?

         13                 MR. DI TORO: Oh, opening up more

         14  streets, absolutely.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, thank you.

         16                 Anyone else?

         17                 MR. FOX: Yeah, hello. Hello. Yeah, my

         18  name is David Fox. I'm a disabled veteran. I have

         19  been since '87, which means I have a low priority

         20  number, which means I have a good deal of strength

         21  with that.

         22                 I believe the priority should

         23  continue to exist because the idea that one guy can

         24  get there early in the morning, and there is not

         25  going to be a problem, that is a very naive way of
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          2  going. It's just not going to happen that way.

          3                 And I personally feel, if I'm working

          4  20 years, I should have a low priority number.

          5                 Also, I would like to say, what this

          6  gentleman was talking about, the planters, it's an

          7  issue nobody wants to talk about. Nobody will do

          8  anything about it. The cops don't want to hear about

          9  it, Consumer Affairs don't want to hear about it.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Fox, you'd like

         11  to see the bill address the issue of the planters

         12  and street furniture?

         13                 MR. FOX: Nobody has done anything so

         14  far.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         16                 MR. FOX: It's been a few years now.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         18                 MR. FOX: Manhattan Mall, they don't

         19  like us. They just put planters up. Take away a

         20  veteran's spot.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         22                 Any other parts of the bill

         23  specifically? I'm just trying to make sure everybody

         24  gets a chance to speak.

         25                 MR. FOX: I think the priority system
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          2  should continue to exist. I think it's the only fair

          3  way to go, and anything other than that is just

          4  going to cause fighting in the morning, fighting in

          5  the afternoon.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And are you in

          7  agreement with what I heard people say, is that the

          8  system sort of works itself out naturally after some

          9  time, one guy sort of knows that the other guy is

         10  over here and this person is over there, so a lot of

         11  people don't -- because you have a priority system

         12  now.

         13                 MR. FOX: I don't know about that.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You don't know.

         15                 MR. FOX: I don't know about that

         16  because --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You say you have a

         18  low priority number.

         19                 MR. FOX: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, do you find

         21  yourself with people --

         22                 MR. FOX: There is bumping that

         23  exists.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: There is bumping?

         25                 MR. FOX: Sure.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. Anything else

          3  about the bill you want to comment on?

          4                 MR. FOX: No. I just got back from

          5  overseas, so I'm not even that familiar with it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: All right. Thank

          7  you very much.

          8                 MR. FOX: Right.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Could you guys let

         10  the other two guys behind you, Dan, could you let

         11  them have seats? And if there are questions we'll

         12  call you back up. And are the disabled veterans

         13  cleaning up that mess over there? There's towels in

         14  the bathroom, okay?

         15                 I'm sure if it was the ship you were

         16  on you'd be cleaning up, so... Or I'll get a ticket

         17  for, the Sanitation people will come and give you a

         18  ticket.

         19                 I'm pulling your leg there, Beazer.

         20                 Yes, gentlemen. I'm sorry.

         21                 MR. SIMMONS: Hello. My name is Ben

         22  Simmons. I'm with the Disabled Veterans Action

         23  Committee. I've been a vendor since approximately

         24  1995, and the one thing I just want to --

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm sorry. You said
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          2  you were a disabled veteran?

          3                 MR. SIMMONS: Yes, disabled veteran

          4  vendor.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes, okay.

          6                 MR. SIMMONS: It's an action committee

          7  that we put together within the last couple of

          8  years.

          9                 The one thing I want to touch on is

         10  the relationship, or of a lack thereof, between the

         11  police that police the vendors, and --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: If you want to

         13  wait, wait til they're finished. We're going to cut

         14  them off that water.

         15                 Go ahead, Mr. Simmons.

         16                 MR. SIMMONS: In any case, the

         17  experience that I've had with my time with vending

         18  is finding a place where I vend legally according to

         19  the law, and then also having police police me in an

         20  area that I've been told is legal for me to vent,

         21  with a license.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You've been finding

         23  that a hard thing to find that spot?

         24                 MR. SIMMONS: At times it's been that

         25  way. Not every time, but there have been times when
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          2  it's enough to bother me and say why do I have a

          3  license.

          4                 Why is it that you as a police

          5  officer are pursuing me with the license displayed,

          6  being prepared to write me a ticket for inches, when

          7  in the immediate backdrop, and I mean specifically

          8  I'm on Battery Place and Greenwich Street, right

          9  behind me is Battery Park, there is any number of

         10  unlicensed illegal vending taking place with

         11  knock-off items, and this guy is writing me a

         12  ticket. It doesn't make me very happy. I don't

         13  understand the relationship.

         14                 I'm not understanding what they're

         15  looking for. Inside of this law, this bill, I would

         16  like to see where there should be some kind of

         17  normalization. There should be some normalization or

         18  some kind of a communication venue provided so that

         19  the police don't have a predatory opinion or

         20  perspective on the licensed vendor. Do not come out

         21  with the idea of a quota of tickets. This sometimes

         22  seems to be the case. I'm not saying it is, but it

         23  appears that way to me.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So do you want to

         25  speak specifically to any part of the legislation?
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          2  Are you saying I should have in the legislation a

          3  prohibition on the cop giving out a certain -- I'm

          4  very aware of the issues and the concerns that

          5  you're raising. I've heard it over and over again,

          6  but I'm trying to get the testimony, be very

          7  specific to what's in the legislation.

          8                 Again, you're moving into the area of

          9  enforcement, which some of the other people have.

         10  So, do you have any other comments specific to 621

         11  about opening up the streets, about licensing the

         12  First Amendment people, about fingerprinting, any of

         13  those things that you've heard before about the

         14  structure of three on a block?

         15                 MR. SIMMONS: Okay, I have to say the

         16  fingerprinting, I must absolutely agree with Mr.

         17  Rossi and Mr. Di Toro. You know, being fingerprinted

         18  prior to an arrest makes really no sense and it's

         19  very intrusive.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You don't think to

         21  get a license? Now, there are licenses that they

         22  give you now that require fingerprinting.

         23                 MR. SIMMONS: Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: This is another

         25  license that would require fingerprinting. They're
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          2  talking about fingerprinting, is at the time that

          3  you would be getting a license, and you would have

          4  to get, you would have to have a fingerprint. That's

          5  what it is.

          6                 MR. SIMMONS: Well, you know, that has

          7  its good points and its bad points, and I think

          8  that's why people are very touchy about that, and as

          9  far as that goes, that's what I'll say about that.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. All right.

         11                 MR. SIMMONS: Limiting three to a

         12  block face, makes sense and it doesn't make sense.

         13  Again, being that, you know, the licensing or the

         14  vending law, making it legal to vend in the City of

         15  New York was provided initially to the veteran,

         16  okay? Coming from the war --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes.

         18                 MR. SIMMONS: Maybe not being able to

         19  hold a regular job.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes.

         21                 MR. SIMMONS: So this opened it up to

         22  other people in the eventuality.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Right.

         24                 MR. SIMMONS: Okay?

         25                 I want people to, inside of this law
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          2  to be informed that the reason why you're even able

          3  to vend here, not so much that -- okay, thank God

          4  for the First Amendment, okay? Thank God for it. But

          5  also, there are reasons why people were given

          6  priority. There's a reason why we have a defense

          7  system. There's a reason why veterans were given a

          8  privilege.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I understand.

         10                 MR. SIMMONS: Okay? And a lot of

         11  people don't recognize that and don't respect it and

         12  it causes a lot of problems in the streets.

         13                 It's not like we don't have a concern

         14  for other people who need to make a living, but show

         15  some respect for those people who may have put their

         16  lives on the line out there.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         18  much.

         19                 You know, I don't want to sound

         20  overly, like I'm pandering to you, but I think we

         21  all respect people have supported the country and

         22  been out there and been disabled, and I certainly do

         23  and all of my colleagues do. Thank you for that

         24  service.

         25                 MR. SIMMONS: Right.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Johnson.

          3                 MR. JOHNSON: Yes. My name is Mr.

          4  Johnson. I'm the President of the Disabled Veterans

          5  Action Committee. And my main concern here today is

          6  I don't have a prepared statement, I didn't make

          7  one, what brought me downtown Manhattan here is I

          8  had to fight a ticket, okay? That's what vendors

          9  get. And I came here because I wanted to hear all

         10  the different sides, your side. You e-mailed me some

         11  information and I read what I could, but I wanted to

         12  hear. I wanted to hear from the BIDs, I wanted to

         13  hear from the Committee, I wanted to hear from my

         14  fellow veterans, as well as the food and artist, I

         15  wanted to hear from everybody. And my main concern

         16  lies in the priority system that you're proposing,

         17  and the limitations.

         18                 Now, you're speaking about opening up

         19  streets, how about reopen the streets that you

         20  already took? I didn't hear nobody speak about that.

         21                 I use to vend on 1 -- I used to vend

         22  on Broadway in front of 120, in front of the

         23  Attorney General's Office. After 9/11 it closed it

         24  down.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're talking
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          2  about 120 Broadway, not 120th Street and Broadway.

          3  The address is 120.

          4                 MR. JOHNSON: I'm talking 120

          5  Broadway, between Cedar and Pine.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

          7                 MR. JOHNSON: Okay? Yes. And they took

          8  that after 9/11, and they didn't take it away from

          9  food. So, my concern is, is this bill going to

         10  reopen some of the streets that you took away, as

         11  well as open up some of the streets that we can't

         12  vend on anyway?

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes. It's going to

         14  open up, according to some people, 600 streets that

         15  you're not able to vend on. Right now the only

         16  prohibition would be the immediate area of Ground

         17  Zero. I'm having the staff check in terms as it

         18  relates to the address 120 Broadway.

         19                 MR. JOHNSON: Please do.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Sir, if you don't

         21  mind my asking --

         22                 MR. JOHNSON: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: What is it that you

         24  vend?

         25                 MR. JOHNSON: Currently I vend "I Love
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          2  New York" T-shirts on the corner of 45th and

          3  Broadway.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

          5                 MR. JOHNSON: In Times Square.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And you have a

          7  yellow license?

          8                 MR. JOHNSON: I have a blue license.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You have a blue

         10  license.

         11                 MR. JOHNSON: I've been vending since

         12  1998.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Oh, yes, we talked

         14  on the phone.

         15                 MR. JOHNSON: Yes.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Right.

         17                 MR. JOHNSON: And I agree with the

         18  priority system because I have a problem with

         19  somebody that just started vending this year, coming

         20  to where I vend, and having, you know, having a

         21  preference where I've been there, you know, for a

         22  few years, I have a problem with that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, this bill

         24  would open up this particular address that you --

         25  that street of Broadway that you were speaking of.
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          2                 MR. JOHNSON: Hallelujah.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Amen.

          4                 MR. JOHNSON: You know, I created a

          5  rapport with the people that work in that area and

          6  they know me. I'm a family man, as well as a

          7  business man. And another thing, Councilman, we have

          8  priorities, and we have licenses, because a lot of

          9  us don't have the ability to work nine to five jobs

         10  after leaving Vietnam and leaving Kuwait and war

         11  zone places.  That's why we vend. Because a lot of

         12  us have medical problems, you know, and we can't go

         13  out there and hold nine to five jobs. So, vending is

         14  very important to us. You know?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: All right. Thank

         16  you very much.

         17                 MR. JOHNSON: You're welcome.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I appreciate your

         19  coming.

         20                 Thank you. We have two more panels we

         21  want to get to. It's sort of hard to determine when

         22  someone signs up, so I'm trying to put together

         23  panels that I think make sense, they may not.

         24                 Charles Hunt, Linda Grimes, Donna

         25  Keren. Are those three people here?
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          2                 Richard Lipsky, Mr. Jong Soo Kim and

          3  Mr. Sung Soo Kim.

          4                 Mr. Kim, could you take a seat,

          5  please?

          6                 Richard Lipsky is not here? Okay. And

          7  that's you, Ms. Keren?

          8                 MS. KEREN: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. And Linda

         10  Grimes. Okay, would you come up please also? I

         11  called your name.

         12                 Why don't you have a seat next to Ms.

         13  Keren then.

         14                 Do you want to start, Ms. Keren?

         15                 MS. KEREN: Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Am I saying that

         17  right?

         18                 MS. KEREN: Yes, you are.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         20                 MS. KEREN: My name is Donna Keren. I

         21  am the Senior Director for Policy and Research at

         22  NYC and Company, which is the City's official

         23  tourism marketing organization.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Pull the microphone

         25  a little closer to you.
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          2                 MS. KEREN: Okay. Thank you for this

          3  opportunity to comment on Intro. 621, the proposed

          4  local law to amend the Administrative Code in

          5  relation to street vendors.

          6                 Understand that I am speaking from

          7  the perspective of the host to 40 million visitors a

          8  year. Our job is to attract tourists and visitors to

          9  New York and to create the most positive image for

         10  New York City as a visitor destination of both

         11  business and leisure.

         12                 We applaud the goal of an inclusive

         13  regulatory framework that establishes a reasonable

         14  number of vendor licenses, requires photos and

         15  fingerprints for the licenses, rationalizes fines

         16  and fees, addresses the issues of location.

         17                 However, we believe that the effect

         18  of the Council's proposals to repeal Subchapter 27,

         19  and so on, is likely to have a detrimental effect on

         20  street traffic and safety, local businesses, the

         21  quality of life, and especially the conditions we

         22  are concerned with for encouraging travel and

         23  tourism.

         24                 From the perspective of the City's

         25  travel and tourism industry, including the 1,700 New
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          2  York City and Company members, in all five boroughs,

          3  many of them small, independent businesses, and the

          4  thousands of employees at restaurants, shops and

          5  retail businesses that are negatively affected by

          6  the already chaotic crush of street vendors outside

          7  their places of employment, we strongly oppose the

          8  proposals in this bill that would increase the

          9  number of licensed street vendors almost three-fold

         10  to 2,000 by the Year 2007, plus open the door to

         11  additional First Amendment slots. Our concern is

         12  this is too much too fast, and it's something I

         13  think we can talk about.

         14                 We are concerned that you're

         15  deregulating locations where vendors may set up and

         16  open up hundreds of City streets and neighborhoods

         17  to the concerns of garbage, congestion and other

         18  things that have been talked about. Again, our

         19  concern is that these are areas that often are

         20  centers of tourists where they are, and I work in

         21  Times Square where tourists are pushed out into the

         22  street, in order to be able to move up and down

         23  Broadway or Seventh Avenue. These were concerns that

         24  relate to the degradation of quality of street life

         25  in New York and certainly create unfair competition
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          2  for many of the merchants and businesses that sell

          3  things like "I Love New York" t-shirts and caps or

          4  baseball merchandise.

          5                 And then our final concern is that,

          6  and this has been expressed by some other people,

          7  that this priority system which is self-policing may

          8  in the end be unenforceable, and that may lead to

          9  density and street level conflicts. Another BIDs and

         10  neighborhood community groups reported some of this

         11  happening during 2003 when the State law was being

         12  reauthorized and we had situations of unpleasantry

         13  on the streets, particularly, again, around tourist

         14  destinations.

         15                 We look forward to working with the

         16  Council on dealing with these issues, and are open

         17  to a continuing conversation, and I will be happy to

         18  answer questions.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         20                 Mr. Kim.

         21                 MR. KIM: It's on? Hi. Thank you,

         22  Chairman Reed and honorable Council members.

         23                 My name is Sung Soo Kim. I am the

         24  President of Small Business Congress, a federation

         25  of over 70 trade organizations in the City, a prime
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          2  voice for the concerns and interest of the City's

          3  small business community.

          4                 On behalf of Congress, I would

          5  register its opposition against the Intro. No. 621,

          6  although I admire the Committee's spirit for

          7  developing an inclusive regulatory framework for

          8  vendors.

          9                 The bill raises the licenses by

         10  allowing the increase of general vendor licenses

         11  from 853 to 2,000 on January 1, 2007, and the 100

         12  percent increase of all borough specific food cart

         13  licenses on September 1st, 2005.

         14                 What is the persuasive rationale for

         15  these increases?

         16                 Intro. 601 of 1993 declared the same

         17  number of 2,000. This clearly reflects exclusively

         18  the Administration's concerns, not the situational

         19  change, involving the operation of street vendors in

         20  the City for these 12 years.

         21                 Street vending business has become

         22  the number one growing sector when small business

         23  community has faced serious atrophy: The year of

         24  2004 showed 15,000 mom and pop retail stores under

         25  bankruptcy. Administration's crisis,
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          2  Administration's abolishment of most existing

          3  pro-small business initiatives, ticket blitz and

          4  unfair enforcements are among the contributing

          5  factors.

          6                 Raising the license cap is based on

          7  an ideology, care for means of life for new

          8  immigrants.

          9                 Please be advised that 80 percent of

         10  the City's shopkeepers are also newly arrived

         11  immigrants. Please be advised that in most cases

         12  street vending does cannibalize the existing retail

         13  market.

         14                 I demand that the government should

         15  put this license increase under moratorium while

         16  vigorously turning its direction towards relieving

         17  the small business community which is obligated to

         18  pay 14 kinds of direct and indirect taxes and is the

         19  main source of City's employments.

         20                 The bill opens in principle all

         21  streets and avenues in the City with some imposition

         22  of a density regulation.

         23                 The street restriction is to be, is

         24  going to be eliminated. The underlying mindset of

         25  this code change completely disavows the value of
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          2  partnership between the local community and the

          3  government. This is the same mindset as that of

          4  welcoming megastores. We should not overlook that

          5  there are 400 New Yorkers, not one New York in New

          6  York City. Each community knows the best about its

          7  locality. City's sidewalks belongs not only to the

          8  City government, but also to respective community

          9  people. BIDs, LDCs, trade organizations, Community

         10  Planning Boards and neighborhood taxpayers have

         11  their rights to regulate their concerned environment

         12  involving vending operation in their community.

         13                 I firmly demand that the existing

         14  street restriction policy reflecting the concerns

         15  and interests of respective local community should

         16  remain effective.

         17                 I would further recommend that each

         18  Community Board installs its Street Vending Review

         19  Board replacing the centralized Vendor Panel, which

         20  is empowered to declare numbers, sites and process

         21  complaints.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Kim, I don't

         23  understand. You want us to put the street vendor

         24  panel back in place; is that what you said?

         25                 MR. KIM: No, just new creation, like
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          2  localization --

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Oh, create a new

          4  one?

          5                 MR. KIM: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

          7                 MR. KIM: There would be 59 --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I got you.

          9                 MR. KIM: I will supply all the

         10  information on paper.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: A review panel for

         12  every community board?

         13                 MR. KIM: Yes.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         15                 MR. KIM: Okay.

         16                 All right, I would like to urge this

         17  Committee to thoroughly oversight unfair enforcement

         18  and to patch up loopholes in both existing laws and

         19  Intro. 621.

         20                 Let me just bring up, I have a

         21  gentleman behind me, he is one of the victims, a

         22  produce stand versus vendor produce stand in the

         23  case I'd like to illustrate.

         24                 Presence of a fruit vendor near to a

         25  produce retail store absolutely cannibalizes the
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          2  existing market. It doesn't create additional

          3  market. The store handles 90 produce items, while

          4  the vendor displays over 30 items. The quality is

          5  exactly the same, while the vendor's prices are much

          6  cheaper as the latter's business overheads are

          7  relatively negligible.

          8                 Our grievance comes from the

          9  Administration's unfair and one-sided enforcement as

         10  shown by the attached chart. I'll explain a little

         11  later.

         12                 We demand the government to fairly --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Kim, I need you

         14  to wrap up.

         15                 MR. KIM: Okay.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I know the area

         17  around the stoopline.

         18                 MR. KIM: If you look at this one,

         19  I'll point out this is proven in all the experience

         20  data, eight licensing location, if food stand commit

         21  violation twice within two years, Consumer Affairs,

         22  under Commissioner Dykstra's leadership, two or

         23  three years, leads to suspension license. Full

         24  violation for one year, now you from two year to one

         25  year, right? So it is one to four. It's unfair. You
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          2  could lose the stand which guarantees 28 percent of

          3  sales volume for fruit store. Right? Two years, this

          4  is the first time, one year.

          5                 Number two, decal. Mayor Bloomberg

          6  already earmaked, what's 1.8 million, you know, the

          7  fines, out of the Department of Sanitation, right?

          8  This could change for Mayor. Decal by BIC. If you do

          9  not have a decal because private carters neglected

         10  not to send it, I got a ticket for my office, too.

         11  One-hundred dollar ticket.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Kim, if I could

         13  sum up for you.

         14                 MR. KIM: Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You raised this at

         16  another hearing that we had, and I think they're

         17  very relevant issues. So, you are suggesting that

         18  once again there is a bias in the enforcement that

         19  the small business owner is being penalized more

         20  often than even the vendor is, and that we ought to

         21  have parity in the violations as it relates to

         22  stoopline and vending; is that what you're telling

         23  me?

         24                 MR. KIM: Yes.

         25                 Let me just bring up one of the worst
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          2  particular case, the contest between the fruit store

          3  versus fruit produce mobile vendor, okay?

          4                 There's eight items. This is serious

          5  concerns how unfair we are in contrast to the

          6  vendors' violation. Look at all this, Mr. Kim is

          7  right now, this is another serious matter, you

          8  really have to patch up the loopholes. I mean, Mr.

          9  Kim had a store, a fruit store, over six months the

         10  vendor was there. I made a complaint because he had

         11  a lot of, you know, the law-breaking stuff. The

         12  Health Department, Gale Brewer handed it over to the

         13  Health Department, Health Department turn over the

         14  other branch within the same Health Department, it

         15  went to the New York State Department Agriculture

         16  Market, back to the Department of Sanitation, going

         17  here and there, here and there, still the fruit

         18  stand --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Kim's store is

         20  in Council Member Brewer's district?

         21                 MR. KIM: Yes. Yes, Gale Brewer's

         22  district.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Right.

         24                 MR. KIM: And nobody can enforce right

         25  now. This is the serious loophole.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: As it relates to

          3  Intro. 621 --

          4                 MR. KIM: Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You want the

          6  violation to the same level as they are for the

          7  stoopline and --

          8                 MR. KIM: That's right. Turning over

          9  to series -- giving empowerment to Consumer Affairs.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And do you think

         11  that increases the licenses to 2,000 is too many?

         12                 MR. KIM: Yes. I mean, I want to know,

         13  you explain on a good ground of rationale why you

         14  would jump up the same 2,000 which was declared in

         15  1993, the same as Year 2000?

         16                 Look at the Intro. 601 1992.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. Right now the

         18  law calls for 853.

         19                 MR. KIM: I know, yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: So, I'm not sure,

         21  maybe we're just serendipity that got me from,

         22  whatever, 2,000 license in 1992. Trust me, I didn't

         23  remember that number. Sometimes you sort of tease

         24  these things out as to what is reasonable.

         25                 There was a request that we just take
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          2  the cap off and issue an indiscriminate number, if

          3  any people want to have licenses, let them have

          4  licenses. That's what a lot of people want. So, my

          5  attempt was to balance that out. We're going to have

          6  some other questions and I want to hear from Ms.

          7  Grimes and Mr. Hunt, if you don't mind.

          8                 MR. KIM: Sorry, give me just 30

          9  seconds, all right?

         10                 You can look at all the pictures I

         11  give to you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I have.

         13                 MR. KIM: You hardly believe how

         14  terrible they are, the high garbage, because between

         15  vendors over three or four years, nobody, who is the

         16  vendor?

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, according to

         18  the Bloomberg Administration the streets are cleaner

         19  and there are more Sanitation tickets. So, you know,

         20  the Bloomberg Administration says everything is just

         21  duckie, and it's all clean as a whistle, and none of

         22  this is happening. So, I don't know, somebody has a

         23  visual problem or a perception problem.

         24                 MR. KIM: Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I don't disagree
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          2  with you, Mr. Kim, but it is not related to this

          3  bill. To the extent that it is, I understand that

          4  you want parity with the fines and the fees, and

          5  we'll take that comment into consideration.

          6                 MR. KIM: Chairman Reed, you're our

          7  big brother, okay?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you for that.

          9                 MR. KIM: We have no other way to make

         10  our communication. Small business goes down. No

         11  communication. What can I do? This is only place we

         12  --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You are always

         14  passionate in supporting small businesses.

         15                 MR. KIM: Please call an oversight

         16  hearing on unfair street vendor operation.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         18                 MR. KIM: Food store versus food

         19  vendor.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         21                 MR. KIM: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I will certainly

         23  ask my colleague Mike McMahon to help me look at

         24  that issue, but we will address it for you.

         25                 Thank you very much.
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          2                 MR. KIM: You made a couple promises

          3  to me.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm trying to keep

          5  them, brother. I got til December, okay?

          6                 MR. KIM: Okay, thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

          8                 Mr. Hunt.

          9                 MR. HUNT: Good afternoon. My name is

         10  Chuck Hunt. I'm the Executive Vice President of New

         11  York State Restaurant Association here in New York

         12  City. We're one of the most already

         13  heavily-regulated industry. I speak for about 2,500

         14  restaurants, but I also, we also share a common

         15  interest with the, at last count, 24,600 food

         16  service establishments non-vending that exist in the

         17  City of New York.

         18                 My remarks are going to be limited.

         19  One of the suggestions that I have is that the 20

         20  foot rule should be extended from the entrance to a

         21  restaurant to the total facade of a restaurant. With

         22  the amount of money that restaurants are paying for

         23  rental fees, approaching in some cases $300 a square

         24  foot, for what we pay for sidewalk cafe property,

         25  which is covered in the existing law, or the
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          2  proposed law, I would like to see that food vendors

          3  at least be limited to within 20 feet of the facade

          4  of an existing food service establishment.

          5                 As far as fingerprinting goes, for

          6  years we've been required to do fingerprinting, to

          7  get a liquor license. As far as distances are and in

          8  proximity of other similar operations there's a

          9  500-foot rule in having to do with liquor licenses

         10  where you can't get a license if there are three or

         11  more licensed premises within 500 feet, unless it's

         12  deemed in the public interest.

         13                 I learned a lot this afternoon. I

         14  admire your Committee and your leadership with what

         15  you're trying to do here, and I hope that the vets

         16  get a break, the disabled vets particularly, and

         17  we're happy to work with you in any way we can to

         18  try to make this a fair and reasonable approach to

         19  solving what is now a morass of confusion.

         20                 Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         22  much. I see on the card it says in favor or

         23  opposition, you put in favor in general. Thank you.

         24                 Ms. Grimes. Ms. Grimes?

         25                 MS. GRIMES: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Hello.

          3                 MS. GRIMES: Hi. Thank you very much.

          4  My name is Grimes, Linda Grimes. I've been a vendor

          5  since 1987, and a part-time vendor, and since 1990 I

          6  put my name down on the waiting list and they have

          7  never called me. I had my name also down like three

          8  other times after that, and they never called me. A

          9  part-time license for me is very, very difficult.

         10  It's over a decade ago now that I applied for a

         11  part-time license, and I've been seeking full-time

         12  ever since, and right now --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Well, Ms. Grimes,

         14  to my knowledge there is no such thing as a

         15  part-time --

         16                 MS. GRIMES: Yes, I have a part-time

         17  license, only working six months out of 12 months.

         18  And right now, any time I try to work, any time for

         19  six months, I get a $500 ticket.

         20                 Right now I have $2,000 worth of

         21  tickets, and the only reason why that I got my job

         22  back is because of the Urban Justice. I'm a member

         23  of the Urban Justice League, and they helped me to

         24  get my license back. Right now I had to pay $500

         25  installments and I have to pay $127 every month for
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          2  the next 12 months, in order for me to work. I told

          3  them that since 1987 to now, it's been really hard,

          4  it's been real hard to work. It's been real hard to

          5  work on a part-time license, and I wanted them to

          6  give me full-term license.

          7                 Me, myself, have worked in the Health

          8  Department for over 12 years, and I work in the

          9  vital statistics, I work in the baby child health

         10  station, and I wanted to start a business of my own.

         11  And so I started with the vending --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very much

         13  for coming out. I understand what your concern is.

         14                 MS. GRIMES: Yeah, my concern is I

         15  want to work full-term. I pay my taxes and I vote in

         16  every election, and I think it's very unfair to me

         17  that every time six months is up, I gotta run away

         18  and hide and somebody else is going to take my spot.

         19  And I want to be full-term.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, thank you

         21  very much. Thank you.

         22                 MR. KIM: Mr. Chairman, just --

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Mr. Kim, no. Thank

         24  you very much for your testimony today. We've going

         25  to have other hearings. If you'd like to submit the
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          2  stuff to the Chair, please feel free to do that.

          3                 Thank you all very much for your

          4  testimony.

          5                 MS. GRIMES: Thank you very much.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: The last panel.

          7  Thank you.

          8                 The last panel that we're going to

          9  have today, and those who did not, won't get a

         10  chance to speak today, we will take your name,

         11  you'll be the first called for the May 4th hearing

         12  at 1:00 p.m.

         13                 So, can I hear from Marguerite

         14  O'Brien, and Robert Lederman, Bill Leonardi, Zoran.

         15  Zoran, I just am not going to try to crack at your

         16  last name there. Uta, is it Uda, Uta Brauser? Uta,

         17  sorry. Okay. And Aleksandar.  Aleksandar who is from

         18  Kent Street in Brooklyn.

         19                 And we are going to take everybody

         20  else's names that are here and get them on if they

         21  want to speak at the next hearing.

         22                 Ms. O'Brien, welcome.

         23                 MS. O'BRIEN: Thank you, Councilman

         24  Reed.

         25                 My name is Marguerite O'Brien. I'm a
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          2  fine arts color photographer.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're a fine art

          4  photographer?

          5                 MS. O'BRIEN: Right. Color

          6  photographer. I display my work in the street. I am

          7  one of the original members of the Group Artists and

          8  was present for the election which was to be for six

          9  months at a time, on the Voting on the Meaning of

         10  the Name Artist. Robert Lederman was elected in

         11  early 1994. The group was formed in 1993, and from

         12  that point we, the members, had no input or control

         13  over what Robert Lederman did, wrote, contracted or

         14  staged to get arrested.

         15                 Recently Mr. Lederman settled a

         16  lawsuit with the City where he named himself

         17  separately and also the Group Artists separately as

         18  plaintiff. No one from the original group was ever

         19  contacted or served documents, and no names of these

         20  members were ever submitted to the court.

         21                 He received just for himself

         22  $330,000. He has received other settlements in the

         23  last five years from the City. He is only interested

         24  in lawsuits, not the protection of the original

         25  artists, which is a premise of the group that was
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          2  founded.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Ms. O'Brien, would

          4  you be kind enough to speak directly to Intro. 621?

          5                 MS. O'BRIEN: We have no protection

          6  for the proliferation of mass produced printed

          7  matter, which began in 1997, on the onset of framed

          8  pieces. The artists before on the street never had

          9  these frames. It transformed a frame into a product.

         10  From there one person started setting up five spots

         11  with employees, and a few months later more copied

         12  his approach to the street, where it ended up to

         13  having spots controlled all over the City. Dropping

         14  off tables at 6:00 a.m., left there til 10:00 when

         15  the product or the salesmen would arrive.

         16                 I informed the Legal Department and

         17  the Police Department on multiple occasions of

         18  problems.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Ms. O'Brien, I'm

         20  not sure how this is directly related to the --

         21                 MS. O'BRIEN: It has everything to do

         22  with it. This has something to do with it because if

         23  you don't get a handle on the multiple vendors, and

         24  the people who are controlling anywhere from ten to

         25  40 spots, then if you want to license to First
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          2  Amendment people, you have to have a control over

          3  that.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Just a moment.

          5                 Okay, so what I think I'm

          6  understanding from your testimony is you're saying

          7  you're in support of controlling the number of

          8  vendors on the streets?

          9                 MS. O'BRIEN: Well, I don't think the

         10  City quite understands that first you have to get a

         11  handle on what I call the "Kingpins," and I think a

         12  lot of other people call them. And also there's

         13  another problem with copyright infringement. So, if

         14  you don't have a handle on that, whether you want to

         15  license the First Amendment people or not, all

         16  you're going to do is put the original artist way

         17  off into the corner and into the sunset. You know,

         18  you have to have a handle on this, because in

         19  essence there aren't that many original artists in

         20  the City of New York. I have never seen that much of

         21  a change in the years that I've been on the street.

         22                 Let me go back to my statement. What

         23  I was told by the Police Department is, "just go

         24  ahead, move the tables." But an artist is going to

         25  be threatened. If they're by themself they could
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          2  have their stuff destroyed. You have a problem here.

          3  There is a very large copyright infringement going

          4  on on a massive scale. The massive scale is that big

          5  that it is more than what the original street

          6  artists are now in the City.

          7                 I estimate real street artists that

          8  are the sole owners of their work, only estimate

          9  around 50 or 60 artists. What you have now is, you

         10  have people that are controlling the street with

         11  items that are Playbills.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Ms. O'Brien, speak,

         13  please, to the issue of the licensing of the First

         14  Amendment vendor.

         15                 MS. O'BRIEN: But this is an issue

         16  because if you're going to -- you have to enforce

         17  the copyright infringement first before you can

         18  possibly license the First Amendment vendors.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: But that seems to

         20  fall into the same category that many other people's

         21  concerns, which is this issue of enforcement. I

         22  don't disagree with you that there needs to be -- if

         23  you're saying that there's copyright infringement,

         24  there are laws against that, it should be enforced.

         25  I support that, and it seems as if the problem is
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          2  being addressed by so many people, is the lack of

          3  enforcement across the board, it sounds like the

          4  place is completely lawless.

          5                 I'm not belittling, but I need you to

          6  speak, because we're trying to allow everybody else

          7  to have some comments, you made some very specific

          8  accusations about one person and a particular group,

          9  so in all fairness, I want to also have them have a

         10  chance to speak. But I want to hear, are you in

         11  support of the legislation as it's written now?

         12                 MS. O'BRIEN: I'm sort of in between

         13  because of this problem with the streets, because

         14  you're talking about --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. So, other

         16  than that infringement issue, which is legitimate

         17  issue, are there other concerns that you have with

         18  the bill, or other parts of it that you like?

         19                 MS. O'BRIEN: I'm not crazy about one

         20  artist per block. I think that could be a problem

         21  because I do find myself, even if I'm in a street

         22  which has a very large avenue or large sidewalk, you

         23  can be sort of, you know, just disappear if you're

         24  by yourself. Sometimes it's good to have two people

         25  with you --
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Two people selling

          3  similar art?

          4                 MS. O'BRIEN: Art, yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

          6                 Anything else?

          7                 MS. O'BRIEN: I think that as far as

          8  the artist is concerned, the size and placement

          9  restrictions should be enough to control the

         10  situation, as far as the artist.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: The size and the?

         12                 MS. O'BRIEN: The three feet from the

         13  door --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         15                 MS. O'BRIEN:-- Ten feet from the

         16  curb.

         17                 So, if you're also restricting let's

         18  say three per block, the First Amendment material

         19  and the general vendor and the food vendor,

         20  everybody seems to be worried about one corner, but

         21  nobody is talking about the other corner.

         22                 So, everybody is going to be like

         23  over here and nobody is going to be over there and

         24  nobody is going to be in the middle block. And if

         25  you are opening up all the avenues, then nobody is
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          2  going to care who is on the avenue to be at the

          3  corner. The middle is going to be probably better

          4  than the corner if you're on the avenue. So, the

          5  story about 24 and the congestion is not going to

          6  happen.

          7                 But I do feel that what has been

          8  offered here, and this is my personal opinion, I

          9  tend myself to be for the original artist, and the

         10  abomination that's going on with the copyright

         11  infringement and the multiple stands of kingpins

         12  controlling anywhere from ten to 50 spots in the

         13  City, in that aspect I'm for the licensing.

         14                 But on the other aspect of

         15  controlling us from one per block space, that's a

         16  problem because in the end if the proper enforcement

         17  was done, you're talking about 150 spots were going

         18  to be cleaned up, and that would be from the

         19  framing. It's the framing that makes the situation a

         20  product.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I understand.

         22                 MS. O'BRIEN: And I'm sure that no

         23  artist would be against getting rid of the framing.

         24  It's another thing to schlep onto the street.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 MS. O'BRIEN: I want to thank you,

          4  Councilman Reed. Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

          6                 Mr. Lederman, are you next?

          7                 MR. LEDERMAN: I am next.

          8                 You know, I came here, as you can

          9  understand, to talk about the bill, which I'm going

         10  to keep most of my comments to. But I'll just take a

         11  sentence or two to address Ms. O'Brien's liabless

         12  comments.

         13                 The settlement that she discussed of

         14  $350,000 was divided by 31 artists. It included

         15  every single person whose name was on the lawsuit as

         16  a plaintiff.

         17                 As far as the history of the Group

         18  Artists, it's very well documented in the media for

         19  the past ten years I was elected four different

         20  times to be the president of the group. Ms. O'Brien

         21  was an early member of the group. There is no

         22  question about it. And like many people in the

         23  diverse street artist community, there are artists

         24  that are in favor of licenses and permits and

         25  various restrictions. If you scratch below the
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          2  surface of what they're really talking about, it

          3  comes down to competition. They see the issuance of

          4  a license as a way to get rid of their competition.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Even if you can

          6  have unlimited number of licenses?

          7                 MR. LEDERMAN: Because of the priority

          8  system. I'm guessing, I don't know what Ms.

          9  O'Brien's tax ID number would be.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Just let me hear

         11  what you think.

         12                 MR. LEDERMAN: But I know from talking

         13  to hundreds of artists just this past week about

         14  this law, that there are some that view it as a way

         15  to get rid of the competition. These are people who

         16  feel that they will prevail and what these are

         17  called, the survival of the fittest scenario, and

         18  they'll get that spot, either by force or some other

         19  means.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do you want to

         21  speak about other aspects of the bill?

         22                 MR. LEDERMAN: I do.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Please do.

         24                 MR. LEDERMAN: This bill, with all due

         25  respect to the Committee, and to your personally,
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          2  who obviously put a lot of work into it.

          3                 It's a little bit like the

          4  Frankenstein monster. You've taken the parts from

          5  various dead bodies, in this case the dead bodies

          6  being previous vending proposals that were rejected,

          7  you've stitched them together, and you hope to bring

          8  it to life.

          9                 If you do it's going to be like the

         10  Frankenstein monster, it's going to run chaos

         11  throughout the streets of this City.

         12                 The priority system that you've

         13  proposed, I've talked to a number of police officers

         14  about it, without me prompting them, the first thing

         15  they said, impossible to enforce, will lead to

         16  violence, and I predict that if somehow this

         17  priority system, as you've described it in this bill

         18  were to pass that it would literally create a state

         19  of emergency in the City --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: How would you

         21  suggest that we sort of relate to some control of

         22  the numbers? If that's not a good system, I

         23  understand it. And your characature is amusing, it

         24  might be accurate, so if we don't use a priority

         25  system, how else should we do it, Robert?
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          2                 MR. LEDERMAN: Well, let me finish my

          3  testimony.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

          5                 MR. LEDERMAN: If you don't mind.

          6                 The basic premise of this bill is

          7  totally flawed. In the first paragraph it talks

          8  about all these different kinds of legal decisions,

          9  which happens to be my group's legal decisions, all

         10  these different laws and special rights that certain

         11  groups of vendors have, such as the disabled vets,

         12  and the food vendors who lobbied for many years to

         13  get their special rights. And you're proposing, so

         14  to speak, to bring about social justice, by taking

         15  away everybody's rights so we'll all be on the same

         16  level.

         17                 In this country there are many

         18  classes of people with different legal status. Just

         19  to take an obvious one, children have a different

         20  legal status than adults. Now, that may make some

         21  problems for the court system, for the police to

         22  enforce and so on, but the people of this country

         23  voted through their legislators to make a different

         24  set of laws for children, because we wanted to

         25  protect them.
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          2                 I represent First Amendment vendors.

          3  Why did they make it the First Amendment, out of all

          4  the things that those founding fathers could put as

          5  the First Amendment? These were plantation owners,

          6  they could have put protective slavery as the First

          7  Amendment. That would have helped them, but they put

          8  free speech as the First Amendment because they

          9  believed it was the single most important thing in

         10  this country, and since the days that the

         11  Constitution was written, no matter who has been the

         12  President or who has run Congress, this country has

         13  held up First Amendment Rights as the most important

         14  civil rights.

         15                 Your bill in the first paragraph

         16  basically eliminates First Amendment rights, not

         17  only for street artists, nobody is mentioning here

         18  written matter vendors. There are at least a

         19  thousand written matter vendors in this City,

         20  newspaper vendors, book vendors, and a special class

         21  of written matter vendors who sell Afro-censured

         22  literature. These people are in your district,

         23  they're downtown here in the hundreds. This law is

         24  basically good to eliminate them, and most street

         25  arts.
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          2                 The idea of making, of putting First

          3  Amendment speakers on the same level as a hotdog

          4  vendor or somebody selling batteries, it seems to me

          5  that this is completely missing the concept of

          6  Freedom of Speech.

          7                 Another very bizarre part of this law

          8  is the fingerprinting, and I addressed this in your

          9  previous hearing. Gretchen Dykstra and John

         10  Feinblatt kept testifying that when vendors are

         11  arrested, they're not fingerprinted.

         12                 I've been arrested 50 times. I was

         13  never not fingerprinted. Even when the same exact

         14  officers arrested me, who had done if five or ten

         15  times before, they said, Robert, that's the law. We

         16  have ti fingerprint you.

         17                 So, there's no vendor that has ever

         18  been arrested in this City that was not

         19  fingerprinted.

         20                 To this idea that you have to

         21  pre-fingerprint vendors to prevent whatever it is

         22  you're trying to prevent, is simply not based on any

         23  fact at all.

         24                 I would also say this: It's a very

         25  rare day when I agree with anything the BIDs are
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          2  saying, but I think as you saw from this meeting, by

          3  this law you've actually done something that I never

          4  thought would be possible. Not only are you uniting

          5  vendors with each other, you're actually uniting

          6  vendors with the BID, and believe it or not, I think

          7  you know this, privately with the Bloomberg

          8  Administration. Because there they're against

          9  different parts of this bill, but they seem to be

         10  equally determined that it not pass.

         11                 I want to say one other thing. Just a

         12  few yours ago at this hearing you, yourself,

         13  suggested to one of the BID directors, I don't know

         14  if it was Tom Cusick or Mr. White, Mr. Weiss, or

         15  what if we ban vending on the avenues?

         16                 Well, what I'm proposing here is a

         17  theory, is that this law, whether you meant it that

         18  way or not, is sort of a bait-n-switch operation.

         19  We're going to tell the vendors we're going to

         20  unrestrict the cap on licenses, create thousands of

         21  new vendors, and then let you sell on any block you

         22  want.

         23                 You'll be limited to three, but just

         24  imagine, you can spread out all over the City. But

         25  we both know that before this law is ever passed,
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          2  there is going to be very large restrictions on the

          3  streets that will be open. But it won't really be

          4  you could sell anywhere you want. I think this law,

          5  there is really only one group that is really going

          6  to be happy with this law. I don't think you meant

          7  it that way, but it's illegal vendors.

          8                 I spent most of my life as an illegal

          9  vendor. I sold any place I wanted. I ignored every

         10  single vending law. Not like now. This law is going

         11  to, by eliminating illegal vendors from most blocks

         12  or from most parts of blocks, you're going to

         13  inadvertently open up the choicest vending spots to

         14  people that by the very nature of their profile, an

         15  illegal vendor, don't have to follow any part of the

         16  vending law. So, they'll just fill in the newly

         17  empty spaces that long-time vendors like Marguerite

         18  O'Brien have been occupying.

         19                 I also believe, I'll say one last

         20  thing and then you can comment or ask me anything

         21  you want, I think that the real agenda that's behind

         22  this is that the City wants to sell the spot, and

         23  I'll explain to you how this gets you to there. By

         24  creating planned chaos with this priority system,

         25  and all the violence that it's going to create,
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          2  there will be a tremendous demand to find a new way

          3  to assign the spots. And what's that new way going

          4  to be? Selling the spots to the highest bidder, as

          5  you've done right now in every New York City park.

          6                 Who will get those spots in the

          7  system? Just like in the parks, every single spot,

          8  other than those that are being operated by street

          9  artists, will be owned by a corporation. That

         10  corporation will hire illegal vendors, illegal

         11  aliens to actually operate their stand, pay them

         12  less than the minimum wage, like they do now in

         13  Central Park, and pay the City as much as a million

         14  dollars per spot.

         15                 There won't be any less vendors, but

         16  none of the vendors that came here today will still

         17  be in operation. And I believe that is the real

         18  agenda behind this attempt at vendor reform.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Let me ask you

         20  this: So, if we were to open up all the streets, as

         21  we have proposed, except for the Ground Zero, you'd

         22  be supportive of that?

         23                 MR. LEDERMAN: Well, that's like

         24  saying, if you took out, you know, all of the things

         25  that are going to be in this law with it, that you
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          2  support it.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm asking you a

          4  question. Right now the bill says that all of the

          5  streets, with a small exception are open; is that a

          6  good idea?

          7                 MR. LEDERMAN: By itself, taken in

          8  isolation, no vendor would be against opening the

          9  streets. And I will put it on the record, in case

         10  anybody questions it, I have no problem with you

         11  issuing any number of licenses to unlicensed

         12  vendors. I have no problem with immigrants who are

         13  not citizens, even who are here illegally. If the

         14  City wants to let them vend, it's not for me to say

         15  they can't. But don't do it on our backs. Don't take

         16  away our rights to give it to them.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: First of all, who

         18  is we?

         19                 MR. LEDERMAN: "We" being the First

         20  Amendment vendors."

         21                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, what right of

         22  yours is being taken away by allowing someone else

         23  to vend? What right is that?

         24                 MR. LEDERMAN: None by doing that. By

         25  giving us a license you are completely taking away

                                                            162

          1  COMMITTEE ON CONSUMER AFFAIRS

          2  our right.

          3                 Let me give you an example. Most of

          4  the City officials that talk about First Amendment

          5  vendors, they profile they have in mind is a hired

          6  vendor, like the ones Ms. O'Brien is talking about,

          7  selling some souvenir photographs of the World Trade

          8  Center collapsing. And frankly, these aren't people

          9  that I'm greatly sympathetic to, but the reality of

         10  the First Amendment is that it doesn't just protect

         11  artists. It protects art galleries. It doesn't just

         12  protect the original --

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And that's the

         14  greatness of it. So, let's move forward. Right. So,

         15  what's the point.

         16                 MR. LEDERMAN: This law imposes a

         17  license on First Amendment vendors.

         18                 Now, I'm a political artist. You know

         19  my work very well. If I see the

         20  Mayor make a speech later today on TV, I may make a

         21  painting and be in front of City Hall the next

         22  morning. This system makes that impossible. I'd have

         23  to get a tax ID, I'd have to get a license, and I'd

         24  have to somehow negotiate this priority system. It

         25  places me in competition with approximately 14,000
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          2  other people with licenses.

          3                 This system, as it's written,

          4  completely eliminates any possibility of spontaneous

          5  political speech.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do you think that

          7  the City and the businesses have some rationale, or

          8  should have some expectation of being able to have

          9  some control over the activities on the street?

         10                 MR. LEDERMAN: I think City officials

         11  definitely. I don't think BIDs should be in the

         12  business of regulating artists.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay, fine. The

         14  BIDs, as you heard, I'm not getting a job with them.

         15  No, as you heard, they're not in support of this.

         16  You're the guy that was standing over there

         17  discussing where I was going to work next. The BIDs

         18  aren't in support of this. So, you agree that the

         19  City has the right, and perhaps even should, take

         20  the leadership to try to control and have some

         21  cohesion and prevent what some people characterize

         22  as chaos on the street. That's okay, right? In your

         23  mind?

         24                 MR. LEDERMAN: The existing 60-page

         25  vending law is filled with restrictions that apply
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          2  to artists and First Amendment vendors.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: And you like that

          4  the way it is now?

          5                 MR. LEDERMAN: There is one paragraph

          6  which you've completely deleted, the written matter

          7  exemption, which by the way this City Council passed

          8  in 1982 at great effort. You completely razored that

          9  out of the vending law. Apart from those exemptions,

         10  which was basically an exemption from a license, we

         11  have virtually the same restrictions that any other

         12  vendor has, on the time, place and manner of our

         13  business activity, and I think most objective

         14  viewers of the so-called vending issue will say that

         15  the typification of this as a chaotic situation is

         16  not true.

         17                 Look, you're an African-American. If

         18  you don't like black people, one black person in a

         19  place might be too many for you, but people who are

         20  saying that there's too many vendors are people that

         21  just don't want any vendors. It's not because there

         22  are too many. They don't want any.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay. Thank you

         24  very much.

         25                 Sir. Yes.
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          2                 MR. LEONARDI: My name is Bill

          3  Leonardi. I'm an artist vendor. I'd like to comment,

          4  first of all, on your brief synopsis at the

          5  beginning of this bill that you were proposing.

          6                 First of all, I'd like to comment

          7  that due mainly to the efforts of Robert Lederman,

          8  we have won five federal Appeals Court decisions

          9  against the City, and what you're proposing of

         10  requiring of artists to register with the Department

         11  of Consumer Affairs I believe is in violation of all

         12  those Court decisions.

         13                 Secondly, first of all, many artists

         14  come from Massachusetts and other places to exhibit

         15  on the streets of New York, and I think they add

         16  something to the culture of the City and this would

         17  make it very difficult for someone just to come to

         18  town and set up their artwork. It does happen every

         19  day and I think it's an important factor of city

         20  life.

         21                 Secondly, I would like to comment on

         22  the three vendor per block proposal. I think it's

         23  completely arbitrary. Maybe in some instances it's

         24  necessary for public safety, and in those instances

         25  it's fine, and in those instances it's totally
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          2  arbitrary and I think by that fact also, that makes

          3  it again the Federal Court decisions that we've won.

          4                 On our block on West Broadway,

          5  there's easily 40 vendors, all artists, most of whom

          6  do their own work, on one block alone, and there is

          7  no threat to public safety.

          8                 This would displace people who were

          9  exhibited in this area for many years, for no

         10  particular reason.

         11                 We get along with street owners --

         12  store owners, rather, and they let us use their

         13  bathroom, and there is no problem. We work together.

         14  Contrary to the statements of people earlier.

         15                 Other than that, I'd like to thank

         16  Robert Lederman for all of his efforts on our

         17  behalf, and I'd like to also make, if I may, a

         18  couple of comments on things that have said earlier,

         19  and I've given, sent these to you in writing, I'll

         20  make it very brief, sir.

         21                 First of all, there is no reason to

         22  think our vendors in the streets sell more illegal

         23  merchandise than people in stores. This point was

         24  made earlier, and they always make this association.

         25  We know stores on 42nd Street have for years been
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          2  under Consumer Affairs Department investigation for

          3  selling illegally improper merchandise, as well as

          4  stores in Chinatown. So, to associate vendors with

          5  illegal merchandise is a farce, it's false.

          6                 Secondly, I can speak from my own

          7  business. My own business has been investigated by

          8  the State Labor Department and to be found, and

          9  audited and to be found in total compliance with the

         10  law. To think that artists and vendors do not comply

         11  with the laws, we pay Social Security on the wages

         12  that we earn, and I pay my sales taxes and after the

         13  State audit they find us to be in total compliance.

         14                 There is no association in being a

         15  vendor in any less legal than a store owner. That's

         16  really all I have to say.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         18                 Would you sort of change seats with

         19  the ones that are behind you?

         20                 Thank you all for your patience, as

         21  well as everyone else, and in any particular order

         22  please begin.

         23                 MR. ZORAN: My name is Zoran.  I'm an

         24  artist, and I'm against this on several issues. One

         25  important thing is it's about limitation, limiting
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          2  artists to further work, limiting also veterans,

          3  number of veterans that can go on the streets. In

          4  this time in New York, when you are also hearing

          5  growing number of people losing their jobs, you can

          6  see also more vendors going on the street, not

          7  because of lucrative business, but because of

          8  necessity. And many people who actually were vending

          9  their earning weekly on the street, they would be

         10  doing in one day, for them this is the only way to

         11  survive for the City.

         12                 Many people who are unemployable

         13  because their age. But they have great skill,

         14  they're artists, they're photographers, they've been

         15  illustrators. In present day economy they're just

         16  losing their way of earning their living in New York

         17  City. Only way to stay here and to pay bills, their

         18  apartments, to support their family is to go on the

         19  street.

         20                 Actually in this time I would rather

         21  to see expanding vendors for people to do street

         22  vending, I would especially talk in behalf of

         23  artist, because we are having -- any restriction

         24  will create just more problem. We are having more

         25  people really go on the street, they're vending is
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          2  in designated spots. Actually you have to open more

          3  streets for that, and limiting number of people per

          4  block to just put somebody who want to go on the

          5  street and some completely unvisited streets that

          6  would be actually no point of trying to sell. We are

          7  living in a time really of war, overseas wars, where

          8  we're going to have even more veterans coming to the

          9  City with needs to survive. The many benefits that

         10  they used to have is also being cut. And they are

         11  going on the street, not because they like to be

         12  exposed to elements, but because this is their

         13  necessity.

         14                 Also, limiting per block, we're going

         15  to have one veteran per block, another one who

         16  comes, he's supposed to get to another block, it's

         17  not fair. We should first respect our veterans, and

         18  respect every single citizen of this City that goes

         19  on the street because of pure necessity.

         20                 Another thing is element of free

         21  speech. I'm visual artist, I'm painter. I go on the

         22  street with my work, but this law would also limit

         23  people who have written work. And it's about

         24  spreading whatever message is to be exposed to

         25  people, to be in public's eye. Not many people go to
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          2  galleries but people on the street, and this is also

          3  so much venue and opportunity for many who have no

          4  other means of controlling what they want to say,

          5  what is their message and their view on any

          6  situation that they wanted us limiting that.

          7                 I don't see that we are in any

          8  competition with the Charter. The public supports

          9  this, and nobody would be on the street if nobody

         10  comes to the table and invites this.

         11                 So, I believe that actually we can

         12  trust all sorts of people, and people supporting,

         13  people are going to blocks where vendors are, and we

         14  are not in competition with stores, because they're

         15  definitely different goods. And nobody, what is sold

         16  on the street is not what is sold in the store. If

         17  you have $2 for Shishkabob, you're not in

         18  competition with the rest of the block. You won't

         19  take your wife for anniversary for $2 Shishkabob.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I understand.

         21                 MR. ZORAN: You don't want to get

         22  divorced. But you can stop by and this is no

         23  competition. My work is artists are selling

         24  something on the street for $20, it's not in

         25  competition with something in gallery that's over
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          2  $5,000.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Where are you

          4  vending now?

          5                 MR. ZORAN: I'm on Union Square. And I

          6  actually started on Union Square several years ago,

          7  there was just practically three of us.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You're on the park

          9  side of the street?

         10                 MR. ZORAN: The park side.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Do you have a

         12  vending license from the Parks Department?

         13                 MR. ZORAN: No, I don't have. I'm

         14  artist, I don't have. And in recent years there have

         15  been big increase of people coming there. And years

         16  ago I would be just alone, and I would do, combined

         17  with my art shows, and I'm surviving, one of rare

         18  people is artist who can survive in a City just

         19  doing this, and doing long time and grateful for

         20  this chance, but everybody supposed to have that

         21  chance.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         23                 MR. ZORAN: And I just wanted to say

         24  that I hope it will be -- last time I was here in

         25  City Hall was when my son was giving speech for
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          2  defending actually cutting budget for libraries, I

          3  hope that I will be successful as him, because he

          4  managed to get sympathy from Council, and it hasn't

          5  been done. And this is just another -- just also

          6  wanted to say something about opportunity for

          7  people. There are so many people who are coming here

          8  in New York, because of -- me, myself, as kid 20

          9  years ago in American Cultural Center in Croatia I

         10  was looking at this magazine about, magazines about

         11  New York, about streets with arts, performances, and

         12  this is what attracted me to it. And if people are

         13  talking also about New York as a tourist attraction,

         14  you won't attract tourists in big shopping malls.

         15  Tourists are not coming from other countries to

         16  shopping malls in Long Island. They want to see New

         17  York live, creative, diverse. Like New York, old

         18  name was New Amsterdam. Amsterdam is in Europe, is

         19  bastion of freedom, liberty, and respect, diversity

         20  and dollars. I don't want New York become evil twin

         21  of Amsterdam -- I mean, in Europe --

         22                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I understand your

         23  problem.

         24                 MR. ZORAN: And my girlfriend now, she

         25  run back home to Africa where she's coming with a
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          2  dream. She started her license because she want to

          3  open her business. She's fashion designer. Because

          4  she doesn't have money to open her store on Fifth

          5  Avenue, that's her dream. But she said, oh, maybe I

          6  can go and start doing this in the street with my

          7  designer shopping bags. So, when she comes back I

          8  tell her, you know, honey, maybe this won't be

          9  possible. You just have to think of your dream as

         10  illusion.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         12                 MR. ZORAN: We have to think about

         13  people's dreams. Still expanding opportunities is

         14  preserving something, preserving dreams of people,

         15  and when I was sitting on the balcony, I was

         16  looking, actually staring about "government of the

         17  people, by the people and for the people," and I

         18  believe that the City is supposed to be of the

         19  people, by the people, and for the people.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         21                 MR. ZORAN: Thank you.

         22                 MS. BRAUSER: Hello.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Hello.

         24                 MS. BRAUSER: Thank you for being a

         25  very great leader of discussion.
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          2                 My name is Uta Brauser. I'm from

          3  Germany. I am one of those immigrants. I do have a

          4  small business since 1992. I am an artist, I'm a

          5  designer and a manufacturer, that makes me be in

          6  different categories if I could say I'm an artist,

          7  and artistry and arts and crafts go absolutely

          8  hand-in-hand.

          9                 As an artist, however, I am

         10  absolutely against the First Amendment to require a

         11  license, because First Amendment is not about a

         12  license if tomorrow I want to produce images of

         13  George Bush on cardboard for target practice, and

         14  issues of this kind, political art, I shouldn't be

         15  first going through a licensing process. I should be

         16  able and free to display such art for my political

         17  activism. However, because I have sold wholesale and

         18  I have sold through trade shows worldwide, I've sold

         19  nationwide, I became more and more forced into doing

         20  retail and retail throws me into either a region or

         21  my local area, which is New York City, and I have

         22  been forced by the world economical situation into

         23  doing retail in every possible way.

         24                 I've done many different retail

         25  shows, I do different markets, and I also have taken
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          2  advantage of having the rights to go into the

          3  street. And often I find doing markets with all the

          4  goodwill, I have to try these avenues, doing

          5  different markets don't help me to survive. And at

          6  this point I'm also single parent. So as a single

          7  parent, I needed to find a way to make sales and

          8  make a living for myself and my child.

          9                 Therefore, I would suggest that the

         10  City, for traffic regulations, for traffic matters,

         11  for safety of traffic, would simply block certain

         12  streets to the traffic, which all of European cities

         13  do. We have green zones, there is no car traffic

         14  allowed, these are vibrant zones for artists and

         15  many other type of vendors to have safe areas and be

         16  the absolute tourist attractions.

         17                 And I do want to refer to the New

         18  York City and Company, Donna Keren, and her

         19  statements that the tourist is attracted by a city

         20  that doesn't have cluttered sidewalks because of

         21  vendors. That is absolutely untrue.

         22                 The artists have brought a scene to

         23  neighborhoods. When artists move into neighborhoods,

         24  that will upgrade the neighborhood. That's a very

         25  known factor by the real estate industry that
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          2  artists being in neighborhoods creates a beautiful

          3  environment, create a scene that all the tourists

          4  come to.

          5                 I sell in SoHo, and in SoHo you

          6  should see the crowds of tourists pushing through

          7  because this is one of the things you have to see in

          8  New York, and there's many areas similar to SoHo.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you. That was

         10  very powerful testimony. Thank you.

         11                 Yes, sir.

         12                 MR. MILENKOVIC: Hi, everyone. My name

         13  is Aleksandar Milenkovic.  And I oppose this 621

         14  amendment. I finished in art school in 1997 and

         15  since then was pretty hard to show my art in

         16  galleries.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: You did art school

         18  here in New York?

         19                 MR. MILENKOVIC: Yes, sir. School of

         20  Visual Arts.

         21                 It was pretty hard to show your work

         22  anywhere. You have to be well established, and

         23  usually they wouldn't look at your work. And so,

         24  eight months ago I started to sell limited edition

         25  prints of my work, and also got a tax ID number, and
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          2  to my surprise, I found that people really liked my

          3  work, it was an amazing way for me to share my work

          4  with other people.

          5                 I'm sorry, I have a small stuttering

          6  problem, especially when I'm nervous.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Take your time.

          8                 MR. MILENKOVIC: So, this has been a

          9  way for me to really share my work with people from

         10  around the world actually. I just recently sent an

         11  e-mail for the New Years, for the people who bought

         12  my work, saying thank you for buying my work with a

         13  little card, and I received a reply from people from

         14  Japan, from Germany, and they're all telling me

         15  where this piece of art was hanging on their walls,

         16  and it was just so amazing, if I didn't have this

         17  chance to actually show my work, I really wouldn't

         18  be, I wouldn't be able to show it anywhere else. And

         19  that's why I proposed the part of this limits only

         20  three vendors per City block, because I also sell my

         21  work at Union Square with Zoran. Over there there

         22  are many people and many artists and we are almost

         23  like a big family in a way.

         24                 So, if you would put three people per

         25  block, it would completely change things around. You
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          2  would basically have competition.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Can I just ask you

          4  a question?

          5                 MR. MILENKOVIC: Yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Because I know

          7  where Union Square is, but is there one specific

          8  area around Union Square where you guys and others

          9  work?

         10                 MR. MILENKOVIC: Yes, it's a small

         11  area behind the Farmers Market where artists have

         12  their art work, their photographs.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Is that on the park

         14  side of the street? Isn't that controlled by the

         15  Parks Department?

         16                 MR. MILENKOVIC: I'm not --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Okay.

         18                 MR. MILENKOVIC: Probably.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Robert.

         20                 MR. LEDERMAN: Can I answer that for a

         21  second?

         22                 MR. MILENKOVIC: Sure.

         23                 MR. LEDERMAN: Sorry.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Just a yes or no.

         25  No, sir, you haven't finished your testimony. I'm
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          2  just trying to get some clarification about that. I

          3  didn't want to interrupt you, but we have. Sorry.

          4                 MR. LEDERMAN: Based on the ruling in

          5  Lederman v. Giuliani, 2001, artists don't need a

          6  park permit. Therefore, anyone can sell First

          7  Amendment protected material in any park in New York

          8  without permission.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you.

         10                 MR. LEDERMAN: And this law eliminates

         11  that exemption.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I don't think

         13  that's true, but okay.

         14                 MR. LEDERMAN: Okay.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON REED: I'm not going to

         16  argue that now.

         17                 Please continue, sir.

         18                 MR. MILENKOVIC: So, my basic point is

         19  that this aspect of the bill create an unsafe

         20  environment for the vendors and people around there

         21  that will be very hard to enforce, as well. And I

         22  think we should all work as a group with the stores,

         23  as well. And this unfortunately goes against that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Thank you very

         25  much.
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          2                 MR. MILENKOVIC: Thank you very much.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON REED: Yes, I'm willing to

          4  be wrong about several points today, but I think

          5  I've studied this stuff. The intent is not in that

          6  particular environment that you're speaking about to

          7  limit it to one person. That's why I was asking if

          8  that area was covered by the Park's jurisdiction,

          9  however, I'm still mindful that all three of you

         10  have said that you think that it's problematic to

         11  limit one per block face. So, I understand that,

         12  respect that and I'm going to look at that. But I

         13  think in the particular case that you're talking

         14  about, that's not covered under this particular

         15  piece of legislation.

         16                 So, again, thank you all. I want to

         17  thank my colleague from the Bronx and my neighbor in

         18  the Bronx for being with us in this whole hearing.

         19  If there were people who signed up and were not able

         20  to testify today and want to be on the list are

         21  given a priority number, if you imagine that, for

         22  the next hearing. And you see our staff person

         23  Sandy, and he'll your name. So, we'll make sure. In

         24  an orderly fashion, please. But don't do it now,

         25  just wait a second. Just wait a second. And the
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          2  hearing is at 1:00 on May 4th, somewhere around

          3  here. Maybe on the street, who knows.

          4                 I want to thank you all for your

          5  testimony, and we're going to continue this

          6  dialogue. If there are groups that feel that they

          7  need to be heard and they would like to have an

          8  appointment with my office, to the extent that we

          9  can do that, I'm open to that, if you come with a

         10  group.

         11                 So, seeing no objection, this hearing

         12  is adjourned for the day. Thank you all very much.

         13                 (The following written testimony was

         14  read into the record.

         15

         16

         17  Written Testimony Of:

         18  League of American Theatres and Producer, Inc.

         19  Wilson, Elser, Moskowitz, Edelman & Dicker LLP

         20

         21                 The League of American Theatres and

         22  Producers, Inc. has been serving the Broadway

         23  community for 75 years as the national trade

         24  association for the commercial theatre industry,

         25  including theatre owners, producers and presenters.
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          2                 For the past thirty years, the League

          3  and its members have been involved in the

          4  renaissance of Times Square, alongside civic

          5  organizations such as the Mayor's Midtown Citizens

          6  Committee. Our collective success in this endeavor

          7  has been hard-fought and palpable, as anyone who

          8  ventures through the theatre district today can

          9  observe. Times Square has evolved from a place of

         10  seediness and squalor to an entertainment and

         11  business mecca for New Yorkers and tourists alike.

         12  The city and state reap enormous financial benefits

         13  from the economic impact of Broadway and the Times

         14  Square area.

         15                 Now, unfortunately, with the

         16  commercial vendor situation spiraling out of

         17  control, as well as the inability to limit

         18  pornography shops in the area, those very elements

         19  that led to the demise of the Times Square area in

         20  the 1970s are returning. We cannot stand by and

         21  allow history to repeat itself: the cost to all New

         22  Yorkers would be too great.

         23                 The League of American Theatres and

         24  Producers, Inc. has had long-standing involvement

         25  with New York State's regulation of disabled veteran
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          2  vendors. Our primary objectives regarding

          3  state-issued licenses for specialized vendors, which

          4  have been well-considered by the State Legislature,

          5  are:

          6                 - To limit the number of vendor

          7  licenses issued.

          8                 - To maintain restrictions on which

          9  streets in the Times Square area license holders may

         10  vend (prohibiting vending on the north-south avenues

         11  and 42nd Street).

         12                 - To mandate adequate penalties for

         13  violation of the law.

         14                 - To stipulate aggressive enforcement

         15  of the law.

         16                 The League's objectives are similar

         17  with respect to general vendors, and we therefore

         18  strongly oppose Intro. No. 621 because it:

         19                 - Increases the number of general

         20  vending licenses by more than 100 percent.

         21                 - Eliminates street restrictions by

         22  opening all streets and avenues in the Times Square

         23  area to general vending.

         24                 - Increases the number of vendors

         25  permitted on any block face.
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          2                 - reduces the fine for unlicensed

          3  vending and other violations.

          4                 - Prohibits property owners from

          5  situating any external structure or object that

          6  prohibits vending without prior City approval.

          7                 Times Square has reached its

          8  saturation point with regard to population density.

          9  Tourists, theatre-goers, area service providers, and

         10  local office-workers already compete for limited

         11  pedestrian space with currently permitted vendors,

         12  contiguous illegal vendor stands, and, of course,

         13  vehicular traffic.

         14                 Intro. 621 would push the city's

         15  vending situation in the opposite direction of the

         16  one we have spent thirty years to control, creating

         17  an untenable and unsafe environment for New Yorkers

         18  and tourists alike and encouraging a return to the

         19  dark days when Times Square was considered unsafe,

         20  unsavory, and a place to avoid rather than

         21  patronize.

         22                 In its place, we hope that the New

         23  York City Council would consider sponsoring new

         24  legislation that would help keep Times Square

         25  thriving for the benefit of us all - in addition to

                                                            185
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          2  achieving our objectives of limiting vendor licenses

          3  and the number of vendors on each block face, and

          4  restricting vending from certain streets in the

          5  midtown core area surrounding Times Square, we are

          6  asking for legislation that would aggressively

          7  address the proliferation of illegal vendors and

          8  non-compliance by legal vendors.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 4:50 p.m.)
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          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 18th day of April 2005.
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                                   ---------------------

         25                          CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N

          3

          4

          5

          6

          7

          8

          9            I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified Shorthand

         10  Reporter and a Notary Public in and for the State of

         11  New York, do hereby certify the aforesaid to be a

         12  true and accurate copy of the transcription of the

         13  audio tapes of this hearing.
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         24                 -----------------------

                              CINDY MILLELOT, CSR.
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